
Please note:  Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded 
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Andy Booth 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74325 
 

 
 
 

Principal Scrutiny Adviser: 
Angela Brogden 
Tel: 24 74553 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Monday, 18th June, 2012 at 10.00 am 

 
(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.30 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
B Anderson (Chair) - Adel and Wharfedale; 

A Blackburn - Farnley and Wortley; 

N Buckley - Alwoodley; 

P Davey - City and Hunslet; 

R Grahame - Burmantofts and Richmond 
Hill; 

M Harland - Kippax and Methley; 

P Harrand - Alwoodley; 

G Hyde - Killingbeck and Seacroft; 

J Jarosz - Pudsey; 

S Lay - Otley and Yeadon; 

K Mitchell - Temple Newsam; 

N Walshaw - Headingley; 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting).  
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

           No exempt items on this agenda. 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 and paragraphs 8 to 12 of the Members 
Code of Conduct. 
 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 3 APRIL 2012 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 3 April 2012 
 
 

1 - 4 

7   
 

  CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the changes to the 
Council's Constitution in relation to Scrutiny.  
 
 

5 - 10 

8   
 

  CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the appointment of co-
opted members to Scrutiny Boards. 
 
 

11 - 
16 



 

 
D 

9   
 

  CRIME AND DISORDER SCRUTINY 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on the Crime and Disorder 
Scrutiny role.  
 
 

17 - 
28 

10   
 

  EQUALITY IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES 2011-
2015 
 
To consider a report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customer Access and Performance) on 
the new Equality Improvement Priorities and 
revised Equality and Diversity Policy. 
 
 

29 - 
46 

11   
 

  SOURCES OF WORK FOR THE SCRUTINY 
BOARD 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development on potential sources of work 
for the Scrutiny Board. 
 
 

47 - 
82 

12   
 

  2011/12 QUARTER 4 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
To consider a report from the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 
summarising the quarter 4 performance data 
relevant to the Scrutiny Board. 
 
 

83 - 
100 

13   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider the Board's Work Schedule for the 
forthcoming Municipal Year. 
 
 

101 - 
106 

14   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Monday 30th July 2012 at 10.00am in the Civic 
Hall, Leeds 
(Pre-meeting for Board Members at 9.30am) 
 

 

 
 



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18

th
 June, 2012 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES) 
 

TUESDAY, 3RD APRIL, 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor B Anderson in the Chair 

 Councillors P Grahame, R Grahame, 
J Hardy, P Harrand, G Hyde, J Jarosz, 
C Townsley and G Wilkinson 

 
 
 

93 Late Items  
 

The following late items had been despatched prior to the meeting: 
 

• Agenda Item 8 – Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team 

• Agenda Item 10 – Inquiry into Fuel Poverty – Draft Report 
 

94 Declarations of Interest  
 

Councillors R Grahame, J Hardy, G Hyde and G Wilkinson declared a 
personal interest due to their respective positions as ALMO Directors. 
 

95 Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitutes  
 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors M Hamilton, J 
Marjoram and N Walshaw. 
 
Councillors G Wilkinson and P Grahame were in attendance as substitute 
members. 
 

96 Minutes - 12 March 2012  
 

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2012 be 
confirmed as a correct record. 
 

97 Inquiry into Private Rented Sector Housing - Draft Report  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
Board’s Draft Report following the Inquiry into Private Rented Sector Housing. 
 
Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, was in attendance 
for this item. 
 
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods reported that the Inquiry 
had been useful and welcomed the recommendations detailed in the report.  
 
RESOLVED – That the Private Rented Sector Housing Draft Report be 
approved. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18

th
 June, 2012 

 

 
98 Inquiry into Fuel Poverty - Draft Report  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development presented the 
Board’s Draft Report following the Inquiry into Fuel Poverty. 
 
Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods, was in attendance 
for this item. 
 
The Board acknowledged that fuel poverty is a distinct and serious problem in 
view of the differing causes, impacts and solutions relating to fuel poverty.  
The Board’s inquiry report particularly reflected the strong linkage between ill 
health and fuel poverty and the need to address fuel poverty as a key public 
health priority.  This was welcomed by the Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods. 
 
 
RESOLVED - That the Fuel Poverty Inquiry Draft Report be approved. 
 

99 Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 - Implications of 
Elected Police and Crime Commissioner  

 
The report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods provided the 
Board with a summary of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 
2011 and outlined the initial implications to the City in relation to the 
introduction of an elected Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) from 
November 2012. 
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

• Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 

• Keith Gilert,  Chief Officer – Community Safety 

• Liz Jarmin, Head of Community Safety Partnerships 
 
Members were reminded that the Board had a role as the Council’s ‘Crime 
and Disorder Committee’ and it was within the Board’s remit to review or 
scrutinise decisions of the local Community Safety Partnership.  It was 
reported that the Board would not have the same remit with respect to the 
Police and Crime Commissioner as this would sit with a newly formed Police 
and Crime Panel.   
 
Further issues highlighted from the report included the following: 
 

• Elections for the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) would take 
place on 15 November 2012 with the successful candidate taking up 
post on the 22 November. 

• A shadow West Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel would be in place in 
June 2012 and become fully operational following the election of the 
PCC. 

Page 2



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18

th
 June, 2012 

 

• Funds currently allocated through the Home Office to support local 
community safety activity would be pooled within the office of the PCC. 

• In order to qualify for funding, Community Safety Partnerships would 
need to ensure their local priorities are reflected in the new Police and 
Crime Plan 

• The PCC would be held to account by the Police and Crime Panel. 
 
In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• The need to develop strong links between Scrutiny and the West 
Yorkshire Police and Crime Panel. 

• Wakefield will be the host authority for the Police and Crime Panel and 
the Association of West Yorkshire Authorities (AWYA) will provide the 
secretariat support. 

• Members attention was brought to the roles and powers of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and Police and Crime Panel. 

• Elected Member representation on the Police and Crime Panel. 

• The need to ensure that local priorities are reflected in the new Police 
and Crime Plan 

 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted. 
 
 
(Councillor J Jarosz declared a personal interest in this item due to her 
employment with the Probation Service). 
 

100 Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team (LASBT)  
 

The report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development provided the 
Board with an update on the Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team.  A copy of a 
report that had been submitted to Executive Board in March 2012 was 
included with the agenda. 
 
The following were in attendance for this item: 
 

• Neil Evans, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods 

• Harvinder Saimbhi, Head of Anti-Social Behaviour 

• Councillor P Gruen, Executive Member for Neighbourhoods, Housing 
and Regeneration 

 
Members attention was brought to key issues in the report, particularly the 
recommendation regarding noise nuisance.  It was reported that the Domestic 
Noise service had been moved to the remit of the Anti Social Behaviour Team 
and it was suggested that this could be a useful area for Scrutiny to consider.  
Further reference was made to Out of Hours Noise Services and the need to 
provide consistency across the City. 
 

Page 3



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Monday, 18

th
 June, 2012 

 

In response to Members comments and questions, the following issues were 
discussed: 
 

• There had been investment in new equipment to measure levels of 
noise disturbance. 

• Work with private landlords – this was an area of work that was under 
development and would include other issues including problems with 
litter and rubbish. 

• Noise problems from licensed premises. 

• Timescales for dealing with reported problems.  It was noted that the 
average case duration had significantly reduced under the new LASBT 
structure (average case duration was 70.1 days) 

• Work with partners including West Yorkshire Police and the ALMOs. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report and discussion be noted. 
 

101 Chair's closing remarks.  
 

The Chair thanked officers and all Members of the Board for their contribution 
over the 2011/12 Municipal Year.  He also thanked Councillors Dobson and 
Gruen for their contribution as Executive Members. 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: Changes to the Council’s Constitution in relation to Scrutiny 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues 

1. The annual review of Scrutiny identified a number of areas for amendment within 
Article 6 of the Constitution, the Scrutiny Boards’ Terms of Reference and the 
Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules. These are either to ensure consistency in wording, 
to reflect legislative changes or to provide procedural clarity. 

 
2. This report summarises the amendments made to the Council’s Constitution, as 

agreed by Council on 21st May 2012, which directly relate to and/or impact on the 
work of Scrutiny Boards. 

 
Recommendation 
 
3. In fulfilling the role and function of the Scrutiny Board, Members are requested to 
 note the amendments to the Council’s Constitution outlined in this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  2474553 

Agenda Item 7

Page 5



 

 

1.0    Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report provides the Board with information on recent amendments to the 
 Council’s Constitution, as agreed by Council on 21st May 2012, which directly relate 

to and/or impact on the work of Scrutiny Boards. 

2.0 Background information 

2.1 The annual review of Scrutiny more often than not identifies a number of areas for 
amendment within Article 6 of the Constitution, the Scrutiny Boards’ Terms of 
Reference and the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules. These are either to ensure 
consistency in wording, to reflect legislative changes or to provide procedural clarity. 

 
3.0 Main issues 

3.1 The more significant amendments made to the Council’s Constitution in relation to 
the Overview and Scrutiny function are summarised below. 

 
 Article 6 
 
3.2 The Localism Act 2011 has amended statutory provisions relating to scrutiny 

arrangements within the Local Government Act 2000.  Such amendments are now 
reflected within Article 6 of the Constitution.  It has also been updated to reflect the 
changes made to the Scrutiny Boards this year i.e. the replacement of the Scrutiny 
Board (Regeneration) with a Scrutiny Board (Housing and Regeneration).  

 
 Scrutiny Board Terms of Reference 
 
3.3 Five themed Scrutiny Boards were established last year to mirror the Strategic 

Partnership Boards in order to promote a more strategic and outward looking Scrutiny 
function that focuses on the City Priorities.  This approach will continue.  However, as 
part of their terms of reference, the five Scrutiny Boards will no longer be tasked to 
undertake specific reviews linked to the City Priority Plans of their respective 
Partnerships.  Instead, the Scrutiny Boards are authorised to review or scrutinise the 
performance of their relevant partnerships.  In doing so, they will review outcomes, 
targets and priorities within the Business Plan and specific “Best City for…. “ priorities 
set out within the City Priority Plan. 

 
3.4 Decisions made, or actions taken, in connection with the discharge of any functions 

which are the responsibility of the executive, which do not fall within the terms of 
reference of the five themed Scrutiny Boards, will continue to be considered by the 
Scrutiny Board (Resources and Council Services).  In addition, this Board will also 
review or scrutinise the performance of the Leeds Initiative Board. 

 
3.5 The new terms of reference for the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

are attached for Members’ information. 
 
 Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules 
 
3.6 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules now state that all Scrutiny Boards will act as 

“critical friend” to the relevant partnership and consider and report on the following 
areas: 

Page 6



 

 

 
1. What contribution the Partnership Board is making to tackle poverty and 

inequality, and the progress being made against this? 
 
2. How successfully the Board’s partnership arrangements are working? 

 
3. To what extent are significant benefits being seen from partnership working? How 

has partnership working ensured increased pace of change to address the issue 
in hand? 

 
3.7 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules have also been effected by the Localism Act 

2011 in relation to “councillor calls to action”.  Previously, the authority had to make 
arrangements to enable a Member to refer a ‘local government matter’ relevant to the 
scrutiny committee; now arrangements must enable Members to refer “any matter 
which is relevant to the functions of the committee and is not an excluded matter”.   

 
3.8 The other principle change following the Localism Act relates to the authority’s 

powers to require a “partner authority” to provide information and also have regard to 
Scrutiny Board reports and recommendations.  Previously, this could only be required 
if the information requested, or a report or recommendation, related to a local 
improvement target.  Now, this may be required when the information or the report or 
recommendation relates to functions of a partner authority “so far as exercisable in 
relation to the authority’s area or the inhabitants of that area”. The provision is 
therefore wider and is reflected within the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules. 

 
3.9 Procedures in relation to Call In, which previously resided in the Scrutiny Board 

Procedure Rules, are now incorporated into the new Executive and Decision Making 
Procedure Rules within the Constitution to provide clarity.  The Call In procedures 
now reflect the decision made by Council to add Area Committee decisions to the list 
of decisions exempt from Call In.  

 
3.10 A review of the Scrutiny Board Procedure guidance notes has resulted in three of the 

guidance notes being removed from the Constitution. These relate to inquiry selection 
criteria; minority reports; and equality and diversity/cohesion and integration issues.  
Referencing is now made within the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules to reflect the 
relevant issues that were set out within these guidance notes. 

 
4.0 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 The annual review of Scrutiny was conducted by the Head of Scrutiny and Member 
Development in consultation with the Corporate Governance Team and the Head of 
Leeds Initiative.  The proposed changes to the scrutiny arrangements were 
considered by the General Purposes Committee on 9th May 2012, prior to being 
formally considered and approved by Council on 21st May 2012.   

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration. 

4.2.1 The amendments made in relation to the work of the Scrutiny Boards will not have an 
impact on equality and diversity/cohesion and integration matters.  However, in line 
with the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, the Scrutiny Boards will continue to ensure 

Page 7



 

 

through service review that such issues are considered in decision making and policy 
formulation. 

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards promote a more strategic and outward 
looking Scrutiny function that focuses on the City Priorities.  The Scrutiny Boards are 
now authorised to review or scrutinise the performance of their relevant Strategic 
Partnership Board.  In doing so, they will review outcomes, targets and priorities 
within the Business Plan and specific “Best City for…. “ priorities set out within the 
City Priority Plan. 

 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 This report has no specific resource and value for money implications. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 The amendments made to the scrutiny arrangements are reflective of recent 
legislative changes and also aim to provide procedural clarity. 

 
4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 This report has no risk management implications 

5.0 Conclusions 

5.1 The annual review of Scrutiny identified a number of areas for amendment within 
Article 6 of the Constitution, the Scrutiny Boards’ Terms of Reference and the 
Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules. These are either to ensure consistency in wording, 
to reflect legislative changes or to provide procedural clarity. The more significant 
amendments made to the Council’s Constitution in relation to the Overview and 
Scrutiny function are summarised within this report for Members’ information. 

6.0  Recommendations 

6.1 In fulfilling the role and function of the Scrutiny Board, Members are requested to 
 note the amendments to the Council’s Constitution outlined in this report. 

7.0  Background documents1  

• Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development on Constitutional 
amendments – Scrutiny arrangements.  General Purposes Committee, 9th May 2012. 

• Council’s Constitution - Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules 

• Council’s Constitution – Executive and Decision Making Procedure 
 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 8



Council Committees’ Terms of Reference    
 

 

Part 3 Section 2B(4) 
Page 1 of 2 

Issue 1 – 2012/13 
21 May 2012 

 
 

 

Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 
 
 
The Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) is authorised to discharge the 
following overview and scrutiny functions1. 
 

1. to review or scrutinise decisions made or other action taken in connection with 
any council or executive function of any matter which affects the authority’s 
area or the inhabitants of that area;2 

 
2. to review of scrutinise the performance of the Safer and Stronger 

Communities Board3; 
 

3. to carry out such other reviews or policy development tasks as it may be 
requested to do by either the Executive Board or the Council; 

 
4. to act as the appropriate Scrutiny Board in relation to the Executive’s initial 

proposals for a relevant plan or strategy4 within the Budget and Policy 
Framework;5 

 
5. to review or scrutinise executive decisions that have been Called In; 

 
6. to exercise the functions of a crime and disorder committee6, including the 

following: 
 

a. to review or scrutinise the exercise of crime and disorder functions7 by 
responsible authorities;8 

b. to review or scrutinise any local crime or disorder matter raised by a 
Member;9 

                                            
1
 In relation to the functions delegated to the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods under the 
Officer Delegation Scheme (Council Functions) and the Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive 
Functions) at paragraphs 1 (a) to (e) and 2 (e),(f),and (h) to (k)  and the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Customer Access and Performance) under the Officer Delegation Scheme (Executive Functions) at 
paragraph (k) whether or not those functions are concurrently delegated to any other committee or 
officer. 
2
 Including matters pertaining to outside bodies and partnerships to which the authority has made 
appointments 
3
 The Scrutiny Board has a duty to do this each municipal year – Scrutiny Board Procedure Rule 10.3 
4
 Namely the Safer and Stronger Communities Plan 
5
 In accordance with Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules. 
6
 In accordance with Section 19 Police and Justice Act 2006 
7
 As defined by Section 6 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (formulating and implementing crime and 
disorder strategies). 
8
 These are the authorities responsible for crime and disorder strategies set out in Section 5 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
9
 This is any matter concerning – 

a) crime and disorder (including in particular forms of crime and disorder that involve anti-
social behaviour or other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment), or 

b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in that area. 

Page 9



Council Committees’ Terms of Reference    
 

 

Part 3 Section 2B(4) 
Page 2 of 2 

Issue 1 – 2012/13 
21 May 2012 

 
 

 

 
 

7. to review outcomes, targets and priorities within the Council Business Plan 
and Best city… for communities priorities within the City Priority Plan;  

 
8. to receive requests for scrutiny and councillor calls for action and undertake 

any subsequent work; and 
 

9. to make such reports and recommendations as it considers appropriate and to 
receive and monitor formal responses to any reports or recommendations 
made by the Board.  

 
 

                                                                                                                                        
which affects all or part of the electoral area for which the Member is elected or any person who lives 
or works in that area. 

Page 10



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: Co-opted Members 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues 

1. For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  However, the 
appointment of co-opted members has not been considered consistently across all 
Scrutiny Boards. 

2.  This report provides guidance to the Scrutiny Board when seeking to appoint co-opted 
members. There are also some legislative arrangements in place for the appointment 
of specific co-opted members. Such cases are set out in Article 6 of the Council’s 
Constitution and are also summarised within this report.   

 
Recommendation 
 
3. In line with the options available outlined in this report, Members are asked to consider 

the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  2474553 

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



 

1 Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the Scrutiny Board’s formal consideration for the 

appointment of co-opted members to the Board. 
 
2 Background information 
 
2.1 For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 

appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  For those Scrutiny 
Boards where co-opted members have previously been appointed, such 
arrangements have tended to be reviewed on an annual basis, usually at the 
beginning of a new municipal year.  However, the appointment of co-opted members 
has not been considered consistently across all Scrutiny Boards. 

 
3 Main issues 
 
 General arrangements for appointing co-opted members 
 
3.1 It is widely recognised that in some circumstances, co-opted members can 

significantly aid the work of Scrutiny Boards.  This is currently reflected in Article 6 
(Scrutiny Boards) of the Council’s Constitution, which outlines the options available to 
Scrutiny Boards in relation to appointing co-opted members.   

 
3.2 In general terms, Scrutiny Boards can appoint: 
 

•  Up to five non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that does not go 
beyond the next Annual Meeting of Council ; and/or, 

 

•  Up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of office that relates to the 
duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry. 

  
3.3 In the majority of cases the appointment of co-opted members is optional and is 

determined by the relevant Scrutiny Board.  However, Article 6 makes it clear that co-
option would normally only be appropriate where the co-opted member has some 
specialist skill or knowledge, which would be of assistance to the Scrutiny Board.  
Particular issues to consider when seeking to appoint a co-opted member are set out 
later in the report. 

 
3.4 There are also some legislative arrangements in place for the appointment of specific 

co-opted members. Such cases are also set out in Article 6 (Scrutiny Boards) of the 
Council’s Constitution and are summarised below. 

 
 Arrangements for appointing specific co-opted members 
 
 Education Representatives 

 
3.5 In addition to elected Members appointed by Council, the Local Government Act 

2000 states that the relevant Scrutiny Board dealing with education matters shall 
include in its membership the following voting representatives in accordance with 
statutory requirements: 

 

Page 12



 

• One Church of England diocese representative1  

• One Roman Catholic diocese representative1 

• Three parent governor representatives2  
 
3.6 The number and term of office of education representatives is fixed by full Council 

and set out in Article 6.  Representatives of the Church of England and Roman 
Catholic dioceses are nominated by their diocese and parent governor 
representatives are elected.  Such representatives are then notified to the Scrutiny 
Board and their appointment confirmed. 

 
3.7 Where the Scrutiny Board deals with other non-educational matters the co-opted 

members may participate in any discussion but shall not be entitled to vote on those 
matters. 

 
 Crime and Disorder Committee  

 
3.8 In accordance with the requirements of the Police and Justice Act 2006, the Council 

has designated the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) to act as the 
Council’s crime and disorder committee.   

 
3.9 In its capacity as a crime and disorder committee, the Scrutiny Board  (Safer and 

Stronger Communities) may co-opt additional members to serve on the Board, 
providing they are not an Executive Member. 

 
3.10 The Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) may limit the co-opted 

member’s participation to those matters where the Scrutiny Board is acting as the 
Council’s crime and disorder committee. 

 
3.11 Unless the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) decides otherwise, any 

co-opted member shall not be entitled to vote and the Board may withdraw the co-
opted membership at any time.  

 
Issues to consider when seeking to appoint co-opted members 

 
3.12 Currently, there is no overarching national guidance or criteria that should be 

considered when seeking to appoint co-opted members.  As a result, there is a 
plethora of methods employed within Councils for the appointment of co-optees to 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees (Scrutiny Boards).  For example, some Council’s 
use “job descriptions”, some carry out formal interviews and some advertise for co-
optees in the local press, with individuals completing a simple application form which 
is then considered by Members.   

 
3.13 The Constitution makes it clear that ‘co-option would normally only be appropriate 

where the co-opted member has some specialist skill or knowledge, which would be 
of assistance to the Scrutiny Board’. In considering the appointment of co-opted 
members, Scrutiny Boards should be satisfied that a co-opted member can use their 
specialist skill or knowledge to add value to the work of the Scrutiny Board.  However, 

                                            
1
  Article 6 states this appointment shall be for a term of office that does not go beyond the next Annual 
Meeting of Council 

2
  Article 6 states these appointments shall be for a four-year term of office 

Page 13



 

co-opted members should not be seen as a replacement to professional advice from 
officers.  

 
3.14 Co-opted members should be considered as representatives of wider groups of 

people.  However, when seeking external input into the Scrutiny Board’s work, 
consideration should always be given to other alternative approaches, such as the 
role of expert witnesses or use of external research studies, to help achieve a 
balanced evidence base.  

 
3.15 When considering the appointment of a standing co-opted member for a term of 

office, Scrutiny Boards should be mindful of any potential conflicts of interest that may 
arise during the course of the year in view of the Scrutiny Boards’ wide ranging terms 
of reference.  To help overcome this, Scrutiny Boards may wish to focus on the 
provision available to appoint up to two non-voting co-opted members for a term of 
office that relates to the duration of a particular and specific scrutiny inquiry.  

 
3.16 Despite the lack of any national guidance, what is clear is that any process for 

appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried out in a manner 
which seeks to strengthen the work of Scrutiny Boards. 

 
4.0 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 During 2010/11, the guidance surrounding co-opted members was discussed by the 
Scrutiny Chairs and it was agreed that individual Scrutiny Boards would consider the 
appointment of co-optees on an individual basis. 

 
4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration. 

4.2.1 The process for appointing co-opted members should be open, effective and carried 
out in a manner which seeks to strengthen the work of the Scrutiny Board.  In doing 
so, due regard should also be given to any potential equality issues in line with the 
Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme.  

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The Council’s Scrutiny arrangements are one of the key parts of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  Within the Council’s Constitution, there is particular 
provision for the appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards, 
which this report seeks to summarise. 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 Where applicable, any incidental expenses paid to co-optees will be met within 
existing resources.  

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 Where additional members are co-opted onto a Scrutiny Board, such members 
 must comply with the provisions set out in the Member’s Code of Conduct as 
 detailed within the Council’s Constitution.  
 

Page 14



 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 As stated in paragraph 3.15 above, when Scrutiny Boards are considering the 
appointment of a standing co-opted member for a term of office, they should be 
mindful of any potential conflicts of interest that may arise during the course of the 
year in view of the Scrutiny Boards’ wide ranging terms of reference.   

5.0 Conclusions 

5.1 For a number of years the Council’s Constitution has made provision for the 
appointment of co-opted members to individual Scrutiny Boards.  However, the 
appointment of co-opted members has not been considered consistently across all 
Scrutiny Boards. This report therefore sets out the legislative arrangements in place 
for the appointment of specific co-opted members and also provides further guidance 
when seeking to appoint co-opted members. 

6.0 Recommendations 
 
6.1 In line with the options available outlined in this report, Members are asked to 

consider the appointment of co-opted members to the Scrutiny Board. 
 
7.0 Background documents3 
 

• The Council’s Constitution 

• Police and Justice Act 2006 

• KPMG Scrutiny Review May 2009 
 

                                            
3
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: Crime and Disorder Scrutiny 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 In recent years, the role and responsibilities of overview and scrutiny have expanded 

significantly, with the function now responsible for investigating the delivery of 
services provided by a wide range of public, private and third-sector partners.    

 
1.2 Provisions in the Police and Justice Act 2006, namely Section 19, 20 and 21, further 

extend the remit of local authorities to scrutinise crime and disorder functions and as 
from April 2009, the Council has been required to designate a Scrutiny Board to act 
as the Council’s ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’.  The Safer and Stronger 
Communities Scrutiny Board has been assigned to fulfil this role. 

 
1.3 In its capacity as a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’, the Safer and Stronger 

Communities Scrutiny Board has powers to review or scrutinise decisions made (or 
action taken), in connection with the discharge by the ‘responsible authorities’ of their 
crime and disorder functions.  These are the authorities responsible for crime and 
disorder strategies, as detailed in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, and include the 
Local Authority, the Police Force, the Police Authority, the Fire and Rescue Authority 
and the Primary Care Trust.  In April 2010, the Probation Service became the sixth 
responsible authority. 

 
1.4 The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 also introduced Crime and Disorder Reduction 

Partnerships (now referred to as Community Safety Partnerships) to develop and 
implement such strategies.  In Leeds, Safer Leeds is the city’s  Community Safety 
Partnership. 

 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  2474553 

Agenda Item 9

Page 17



 

1.5 Home Office guidance recommended that a protocol be developed jointly between 
the local Scrutiny function and the Community Safety Partnership to help provide 
guidance and a common understanding of how crime and disorder scrutiny will 
operate in practice.  A protocol was therefore developed in Leeds and is attached for 
the information of the Scrutiny Board. 

 
2.0 Introduction of Police and Crime Commissioners and Police and Crime Panels 
 
2.1 The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 replaces police authorities 

with Police and Crime Commissioners (PCCs) and introduces Police and Crime 
Panels to scrutinise the decisions and actions of the PCCs and assist them in 
carrying out their functions. 

 
2.2 A PCC will be elected for every police force area in England and Wales, outside 

London.  The appointment of the PCC will be made through a public election, which 
will take place on 15th November 2012.  Once elected, the PCC will hold office for a 
period of 4 years (3.5 years in relation to the first term).    

 
2.2 At its meeting in April 2012, the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

received a report from the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods outlining the 
main strands of the Act and the initial implications of the introduction of an elected 
West Yorkshire Police and Crime Commissioner.  It was also highlighted that local 
Crime and Disorder Committees would have no remit to directly scrutinise their 
PCCs as this role lies with the new Police and Crime Panels (PCPs).   In view of this, 
importance was placed upon forging strong links between Crime and Disorder 
Committees and their respective PCP members in order to relay to the PCC any 
issues that have been raised through local scrutiny and vice-versa.  A shadow West 
Yorkshire PCP has recently been established and is due to meet this month.  
Developing strong links between the PCP and local scrutiny committees has already 
been identified as a key topic within their work programme over the coming months. 

 
2.3 Police and Crime Commissioners will be responsible for setting out a five year Police 

and Crime Plan, in liaison with the Chief Constable, based upon identified local 
priorities.  The PCC will then have the power to commission services and award 
grants to any organisation or body they consider will support the delivery of the Plan 
and the priorities outlined within it.  In order to qualify for funding, Community Safety 
Partnerships will need to ensure their local priorities are clearly reflected within the 
Police and Crime Plan.  In doing so, Community Safety Partnerships are required to 
develop a business plan highlighting local community safety priorities and 
demonstrating the effectiveness of the activity it wishes the PCC to support.  
However, this Plan is also expected to reflect areas of shared priorities across the 
police force area. 

 
2.4 The Safer Leeds Partnership is currently in the process of drafting this business plan.  

It is therefore proposed that the Scrutiny Board works with the Safer Leeds 
Partnership to ensure that the draft plan accurately reflects local community safety 
priorities, setting out a robust business case for future funding and services.   
However, as this business plan needs to be completed by September 2012, it is 
proposed that the Scrutiny Board establishes a working group to take forward this 
piece of work and report back to the full Scrutiny Board in due course.  

 

Page 18



 

3.0 Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members of the Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) are asked to 
 

(i) note the attached joint protocol between Scrutiny and the local Community 
Safety Partnership 

(ii) establish a working group of the Board to undertake work with the Safer Leeds 
Partnership to develop the Leeds Community Safety business plan in 
preparation for the introduction of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 
4.0 Background documents1  
 

• National Support Framework. Delivering Safer and Confident Communities.  Guidance 
for the Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters – England.  Implementing Sections 19 
and 20 of the Police and Justice Act 2006.  Home Office (May 2009). 

 

• Report of the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods to the Safer and Stronger 
Communities Scrutiny Board on ‘Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 – 
Implications of Elected Police and Crime Commissioner’.  3rd April 2012. 
 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Crime and Disorder 
 

Protocol between Scrutiny and the 
Community Safety Partnership in Leeds 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2011 
  

Page 21



 

2 

 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
1.1 The Local Government Act 2000 brought in new arrangements that clearly 

defined a scrutiny role for elected members in holding executives of councils 
to account, and in scrutinising the work of other agencies providing local 
services. The overview and scrutiny function of a local authority has the power 
to summon members of the executive and officers of the authority to answer 
questions, and can invite other persons to attend meetings to give their views 
or submit evidence. 

 
1.2 There are four fundamental roles that define good scrutiny and underpin 

scrutiny activity: 
 

1. provides ‘critical friend’ challenge to executive policy-makers and decision-
makers; 

2. enables the voice and concerns of the public and its communities to be 
heard; 

3. is carried out by ‘independent minded governors’ who lead and own the 
scrutiny process; and 

4. drives improvement in public services 
 
1.3 In recent years, the role and responsibilities of overview and scrutiny have 

expanded significantly, with the function now responsible for investigating the 
delivery of services provided by a wide range of public, private and third-sector 
partners.    

 
1.4 Provisions in the Police and Justice Act 2006, namely Section 19, 20 and 21, 

extend the remit of local authorities to scrutinise crime and disorder functions.  
As a result, the Council has been required to designate a Scrutiny Board to act 
as the Council’s ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’.   

 
1.5 The purpose of this protocol is to provide guidance and a common 

understanding on how scrutiny of crime and disorder will operate in Leeds.  
The publication of Regulations1 and good working practice has shaped this 
protocol, which may be revised by agreement between all the interested 
parties in order to continually improve the scrutiny process.  The aim is for all 
parties to help ensure that Scrutiny remains a positive and challenging 
process. 

 
2.0 SCRUTINY BOARDS (GENERAL) 
 
2.1 The overall role and function of scrutiny is to hold decision-makers to account 

and secure improvements in local practice for local people via a contribution to 
policy development and review.  As such, Scrutiny Boards do not have 
decision-making powers.   

 
2.2 Scrutiny Boards are composed of Elected Members selected to represent the 

political balance of Leeds City Council.  These Members will be the only 
members of the Board with voting rights and will be selected to serve for a 
period of 12 months.  The membership of the Board will seek to avoid conflicts 

                                            
1
 The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 (S.I.2009/942) and the Crime 
and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) (Amendment) Regulations 2010 (S.I. 2010/616). 

Page 22



 

3 

of interest and where potential for this exists interests of those Members will 
be declared and subject to the Council’s procedures on these matters2. 

 
2.3 Scrutiny Boards may also seek nominations from other representative groups 

to act as co-opted members of the Board.  These nominations may be for the 
duration of a municipal year and/or on an inquiry by inquiry basis, as set out in 
the Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules, Leeds City Council Constitution.  
However, the Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 
and the 2010 amendment make specific provision for the co-option of 
additional members to serve on a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’. 

 
3.0 SCRUTINY OF CRIME AND DISORDER IN LEEDS 
 
3.1 Scope 
 
3.1.1 In its capacity as a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’, the designated Scrutiny 

Board has powers to review or scrutinise decisions made (or action taken), in 
connection with the discharge by the ‘responsible authorities’ of their crime 
and disorder functions.  These are the authorities responsible for crime and 
disorder strategies, as detailed in the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, Section 
53.  The Act also introduced Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships 
(CDRPs) to develop and implement such strategies.  However, since 1st 
March 2010 the Home Office use the term Community Safety Partnerships in 
replace of CDRPs.  In Leeds, Safer Leeds is the city’s  Community Safety 
Partnership. 

 
3.1.2 Responsible authorities also have a duty to work in conjunction with the ‘co-

operating’ bodies, which involve  parish councils, NHS Trusts, NHS 
Foundation Trusts, proprietors of independent schools and governing bodies 
of an institution within the further education sector. 

 
3.1.3 The Safer Leeds Partnership has an Executive and a Board.  The Board 

meets quarterly and the Executive meets monthly.  Membership comprises a 
number of responsible authorities* and organisations as follows: 

 
3.1.4 The Safer Leeds Executive comprises of Leeds City Council*, West Yorkshire 

Police*, West Yorkshire Police Authority*, West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
Service*, Local Strategic Partnership, NHS Leeds*, West Yorkshire Probation 
Trust* and Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber. 

 
3.1.5 The Safer Leeds Board comprises of Leeds City Council, West Yorkshire 

Police, West Yorkshire Police Authority, West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue 
Service, West Yorkshire Probation Trust, Prison Service, Government Office 
for Yorkshire and the Humber, CASAC, Leeds University, re’new, National 
Treatment Agency and Leeds Voice. 

 
3.1.6 The Scrutiny Board will scrutinise the work of the Community Safety 

Partnership and the partners who comprise it, only insofar as their activities 

                                            
2
 Leeds City Council Constitution - Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules Section 2 

3
 This was amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009. Section 108 of the Act provides for every 
provider of probation services in a particular area, whose arrangements under section 3 of the 
Offender Management Act 2007 provide for it to be a responsible authority, to be added to the list of 
“responsible authorities” which comprise the Community Safety Partnership. It also extends the remit 
of CSPs to explicitly include the reduction of re-offending. 

Page 23



 

4 

relate to the partnership itself.  For the avoidance of doubt, the Scrutiny Board 
will not extend to the separate statutory functions of the partner bodies, nor 
will it entail scrutiny of individual cases.  

 
3.1.7 The Police and Justice Act 2006 also makes provision for elected members to 

refer local crime and disorder matters to the Council’s designated Crime and 
Disorder Committee.  Local crime and disorder matters should be considered 
to encompass  crime and disorder matters that affect all or part of the ward for 
which the member is elected or any person who lives or works in that area 
including: 

 

• Antisocial behaviour; 

• Other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment; 

• The misuse of drugs, alcohol or other substances 
 
3.1.8 While the Police and Justice Act 2006 makes separate provision for the 

referral of local crime and disorder matters, in practice the principles and 
processes involved are essentially the same as for any Councillor Call for 
Action (CCfA) referral.  A separate Guidance Note on how to progress a CCfA 
is set out within the Council’s Constitution.  

 
3.2 Work items  
 
3.2.1 In its capacity as a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’, the designated Scrutiny 

Board is responsible for considering any Member referred crime and disorder 
matter.  At the beginning of each municipal year, the Community Safety 
Partnership will be invited to make any referrals to the Scrutiny Board which 
will be considered as part of its overall work schedule. Such referrals are to be 
formally agreed and presented by a representative of the Safer Leeds 
Executive.  

 
3.2.2 Where the production of a specific report is requested and/or necessary for a 

particular Scrutiny Board meeting, then sufficient notice will be given for the 
preparation of that documentation. There will be a minimum of 7 working days 
notice. 

 
3.3 Information to be supplied to the Board 
 
3.3.1 Where the Scrutiny Board makes a request in writing for information, this 

request will be directed to the Chair of the Safer Leeds Executive for action.  
This information must be provided no later than the date indicated in the 
request, or as soon as reasonably possible, but not beyond 2 weeks of the 
date indicated without the agreement of the Scrutiny Board Chair.  

 
3.3.2 Where  information has been requested by the Scrutiny Board in connection 

with their inquiries, this shall be depersonalised information, unless the 
identification of an individual is necessary or appropriate in order to enable the 
Scrutiny Board to properly exercise its powers. 

 
3.3.3 However, requests made by the Scrutiny Board shall not include information 

that the disclosure of which would not be in the public interest or would be 
reasonably likely to prejudice legal proceedings or current or future operations 
of the responsible authorities, whether acting together or individually, or of the 
co-operating bodies. 

Page 24



 

5 

3.3.4 The Scrutiny Board will not publish confidential information in its reports or 
information which is exempt under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006. Where exempt information has been used in the 
preparation of a report by the Scrutiny Board the report, if published, will list 
the exempt information referred to in the preparation of the report but not 
reproduce it in the report.  However, Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972 should not be used as a method to bypass the requirement to 
depersonalise information by placing reports which are not depersonalised 
onto a Scrutiny Board agenda as an item to be heard without the press or 
public present. 

 
3.4 Attending Scrutiny Board Meetings 
 
3.4.1 As the ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’ the designated Scrutiny Board is 

required to meet no less than once in every twelve month period to carry out 
this particular function. 

 
3.4.2 The Scrutiny Board may require the attendance of an officer of a responsible 

authority or of a co-operating body to answer questions.  Where reasonable 
notice of the intended date is given, the responsible authority or co-operating 
body will be obliged to attend4. 

 
3.4.3 The Scrutiny Support Unit will also try to give approximate times for items to 

be discussed.  However, as items sometimes overrun, there may be a short 
waiting time.   

 
3.4.4 Prior to a Scrutiny Board meeting, the Chair receives a briefing on items to 

appear on the forthcoming agenda from officers in the Scrutiny Support Unit.  
On occasion, officers from the responsible authorities or co-operating bodies 
may be requested to attend this briefing, or a separate session, to enable the 
Chair of the Scrutiny Board to be briefed ahead of the scrutiny meeting. 

 
3.5 Conduct of Scrutiny Board Inquiries 
 

The role of Terms of Reference  
 
3.5.1 The majority of Scrutiny Inquiries have agreed terms of reference.  These are 

used to inform departments of the Council and partners of the emphasis of a 
particular inquiry.    

 
3.5.2 Officers in the Scrutiny Support Unit will liaise with relevant officers of the 

Council and the responsible authorities and co-operating bodies during the 
preparation of Terms of Reference to ensure that the focus of the inquiry is 
relevant and the timing of it appropriate. 

 
Co-opted Members 

 
3.5.3 The Crime and Disorder (Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009 and the 

2010 amendment make specific provision for the co-option of additional 

                                            
4
 The responsible authority or co-operating body should ensure that officers attending Scrutiny Board 
meetings are in a position to answer the Scrutiny Board’s questions and are given appropriate support 
by their line managers. 

Page 25



 

6 

members to serve on a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’.  The Scrutiny Board 
has agreed to consider the co-option of any additional members on an inquiry 
by inquiry basis. 

 
3.5.4 The Home Office guidance for the Scrutiny of Crime and Disorder Matters 

makes specific reference to the role of police authorities and emphasises the 
importance of ensuring that community safety scrutiny complements this role.  
It states that ‘all local authorities should presume that the police authority 
should play an active part at committee when community safety matters are 
being discussed – and particularly when the police are to be present’.  One 
option suggested in the guidance is ‘to consider co-opting a police authority 
member onto the committee when policing matters are being considered, and 
it would be for the police authority to decide the most appropriate member to 
appoint – this can be an independent or councillor member. This would 
provide a more direct link between the police authority and overview and 
scrutiny committee and would be particularly relevant if the committee is 
considering matters directly relevant to policing’ 

 
Gathering evidence 

 
3.5.5 The evidence to be gathered will be detailed in the inquiry’s terms of 

reference.  This material may be considered at a scrutiny meeting which is 
open to the public or by a small working group of Board members deputed to 
undertake a specific evidence gathering task.  In the latter case, working 
group members will report back to a full meeting of the Scrutiny Board on their 
findings. 

 
3.5.6 The Scrutiny Support Unit will try to give guidance on what will be asked and 

sometimes possible question areas will be passed on to the responsible 
authorities or co-operating bodies to allow some time for preparation before 
the meeting.  However, members may follow a related line of discussion and 
ask other questions on the day. 

 
Preparation and publication of reports 

 
3.5.7 At the conclusion of an inquiry, where considered appropriate, the Scrutiny 

Board will produce a preliminary report.  This will be drafted by the Scrutiny 
Support Unit in conjunction with the Scrutiny Board Chair and agreed by the 
Board.  This report will provide a summary of the evidence submitted, along 
with the Scrutiny Board’s conclusions and recommendations.  The Scrutiny 
Board will consult the Community Safety Partnership Executive and other 
relevant responsible authorities or co-operating bodies prior to finalising its 
report.   Final reports will be published on the Council’s website and be widely 
available to all relevant stakeholders and members of the public. Copies will 
be sent to each of the responsible authorities and each of the co-operating 
persons and bodies. 

 
Response to reports 

  
3.5.8 Where the Scrutiny Board makes a report or recommendations to the Council 

or the Executive about the exercise of crime and disorder functions by 
responsible authorities, a copy will be provided to each of the responsible 
authorities and each of the co-operating persons and bodies.   

 

Page 26



 

7 

3.5.9 Where a relevant authority or co-operating persons or body has been notified, 
it must: 

• consider the report and recommendations; 

• respond in writing to the Scrutiny Board within 28 days of the date of the 
report or recommendations, indicating what (if any) action it proposes to 
take; and 

• have regard to the report or recommendations in exercising its functions. 
 
3.5.10 The implementation of any agreed scrutiny recommendations will be 

monitored by the Scrutiny Support Unit and progress recorded at regular 
intervals. 

 
3.6 Scrutiny Support Unit 
 
3.6.1 In summary, the work of the Scrutiny Support Unit entails: 
 

• Providing a research and intelligence function to Scrutiny Boards (each of 
which has been allocated a different area of specialism) 

• Managing programmes of inquiries for each of the Scrutiny Boards 

• Providing support and guidance to witnesses  

• Managing the presentation of witnesses, research and reports to Scrutiny 
Boards  and/or carrying out research and reports “in house” as appropriate 

• Assisting Scrutiny Boards to prepare reports of their inquiries and steering 
recommendations through the Council’s decision making arrangements  

• Monitoring and tracking the implementation of scrutiny recommendations 

• Leading the continuing development of the Overview and Scrutiny function 
 
3.6.2 Contact the Scrutiny Support Unit at scrutiny.unit@leeds.gov.uk 
 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: Equality Improvement Priorities 2011- 2015 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Equality Improvement Priorities have been produced to ensure that the 
council meets its legal duties under the Equality Act 2010.   

 
2.   Closer alignment with the Vision for Leeds, the City Priority Plan and the Council     
             Business Plan were built into the development of the priorities and provides 

  the foundations for a move towards a city wide approach to equality. 
 
3.          In addition, the council’s Equality and Diversity Policy has been revised and    
             updated to reflect the new legal framework. 

Recommendations 

4.        Members are asked to: 

• note the contents of the report 

• consider equality outcomes in performance reports relevant to their Board 

 

 Report author:  Lelir Yeung 

Tel:  247 4152 

Agenda Item 10

Page 29



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report brings to Scrutiny Board  the new Equality Improvement Priorities and 
the revised Equality and Diversity Policy. 

 
1.2 This new approach sets out the council’s continued commitment to equality. It 

outlines the council’s equality objectives, identifies how progress will be measured 
and how we will continue to improve and further embed the equality agenda.   

 
1.3 This work will be developed further over the next two years with a view to move 

towards a city wide partnership approach to equality. This reflects the ambitions 
outlined in the City Priority Plan to have key improvement priorities for the city as 
well as the council. 

2 Background information 

2.1 Leeds City Council has a leading role in the city to promote equality and value  
        diversity. There is considerable work that has taken place to make equality an 
        integral part of our work and in particular in how we deliver services, how we 

employ people, how we work with our partners and how we make decisions.  
 
2.2 Work to date has included strengthening and enhancing equality considerations in 

the policy, planning and performance management framework, the scrutiny 
process, employment policies and procedures, service planning and the 
regulatory framework. 

 
2.3 Equality considerations are now an integral part of the decision making process 

and considerable work has taken place on embedding equality into all aspects of 
work.   

3 Main issues 

3.1 The Equality Act 2010 provides a new cross-cutting legislative framework and 
introduced a general public sector duty that requires public bodies to: 

 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other 
conduct prohibited under the Equality Act 

• advance equality of opportunity between different groups 

• foster good relations between different groups 
 
3.2 The new legislative framework has also introduced specific duties to: 
 

• publish accessible information outlining the equality analysis which has taken 
place to inform equality objectives 

• engage with people who have an interest in furthering the aims of the general 
equality duty  

• demonstrate progress against equality objectives for both employment and 
service delivery 

 

Page 30



 

 

3.3 To meet our legal duties the Equality Improvement Priorities in Appendix 1 have 
been produced.  The Equality Improvement priorities outline how the council will 
improve outcomes for different people across the city.  

 
3.4 Closer alignment with the Vision for Leeds, the City Priority Plan and the Council 

Business Plan was built into the development of the approach and has resulted in 
a more integrated approach to equality in the council’s strategic planning 
framework. The equality outcomes were developed alongside the key priorities for 
the city as outlined in the City Priority Plan and action plans, and are based on an 
analysis of the equality perspective. 

 
3.5 These have been considered and approved by Executive Board who agreed that 

they would also be circulated to Area Committees so that all Members are aware 
of our Equality and Diversity Policy and Improvement Priorities. 
 

3.6        Following the Executive Board meeting a further discussion on the Equality       
Improvement priorities took place with the Member Champions Group.  This is a   
cross party group which has been set up to support and promote the development 
of the equality agenda for elected members.  They have a particular focus on 
developing corporate policy approaches to equality and diversity including having 
an overview of the performance management of the equality priorities for the city. 

3.7        The Member Champions Group also proposed that the Improvement Priorities         
were  circulated to each Scrutiny Board and that equality progress and regular 
reports against relevant indicators were presented to Scrutiny Boards. 

3.8 The early approval of the council’s Equality Improvement Priorities meant we met 
the target date set out in equality legislation and also allowed us to finalise the 
progress reporting arrangements.  Although it was agreed that progress against 
the equality analysis, objectives, activities and measures would be reported 
though the new Performance Management Framework, which has been agreed 
for the City Priority Plan and the Council Business Plan, some additional work was 
required to ensure that separate processes were not developed.   In addition it 
was agreed that an annual report will be produced and published as we will have 
to show compliance with the Equality Duty, at least annually.   

 
3.9 As a result of this the circulation of the Equality Improvement priorities to Area 

Committee’s and Scrutiny Boards was pushed back to the first cycle of meetings 
in 2012/13.  This was to allow for further work that was identified to ensure that a 
pragmatic approach for reporting progress was developed to avoid duplication of 
work and synchronised the reporting cycles. 

 
3.10       Annual progress will now be reported  through the State of the City Report and 

the Equality and Diversity Position Statement and an annual update on equality 
and diversity and progress against priorities is to be included within the Business 
Plan and City Priority Plan performance report.   

 
 
 
 

Page 31



 

 

3.11   In addition the council’s Equality and Diversity Policy in Appendix 2 has also been     
updated to reflect the new legal framework.  The key aim of the policy is to ensure  
that we continue to work towards strengthening our approach to equality. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 During 2010 a review took place which resulted in a number of changes to the city         
and council planning and partnership framework. In particular, a whole system     
approach has been sought which ensures the partnership structures, strategic 
plans and performance management arrangements all dovetail into an effective 
system for delivering real change across the city.  

4.1.2 The Equality Improvement Priorities 2011 to 2015 is part of the city’s revised 
planning framework is integral to it. 

4.1.3 Extensive consultation and involvement was undertaken in the development of the 
city’s revised planning framework and the outcome of this has been used to shape 
and influence the council’s equality objectives. 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Equality and diversity was considered throughout the development of the new     
strategic planning framework. This included checking that due regard has been 
given to equality through the use of equality related evidence in needs 
assessments, outcomes from consultation and engagement activities, which 
include: 

• The ‘What if Leeds…? Campaign’  

• The spending challenge consultation  

• Equality assurance and impact assessment on the approach to strategic       
planning    

 
4.2.2    Tackling inequality was a key issue identified through the consultation. 

4.2.3 The council’s Equality Improvement Priorities have been developed to ensure we   
meet our legal duties in the Equality Act 2010. 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The proposed work will help to shape and deliver future equality priorities 
contained in and delivered through the Vision for Leeds and the City Priority Plan 
2011 to 2015 and help the council to demonstrate how it is addressing the needs 
of the cities diverse communities. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.2    There are no resource implications arising from this report. 

 

Page 32



 

 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.3 The development of the new approach to improving equality and diversity and 
setting equality objectives will reinforce the council’s commitment to equality and 
help us meet our legal duties.  

4.5.4 This report does not contain any confidential or exempted information and is not 
subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The risks to the council if it did not have a published approach to equality and 
diversity would be the failure to meet equality duties outlined in the Equality Act 
2010. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The development of the Equality Improvement Priorities 2011 to 2015 will help the 
council to achieve it’s ambition to be the best City in the UK and ensure that as a 
city work takes place to reduce disadvantage, discrimination and inequalities of 
opportunity. 

6 Recommendations 

6.2       Scrutiny Board is recommended to 

• Note the contents of this report; 

• Consider equality outcomes in performance reports relevant to their Board 
 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 Vision for Leeds 2011 to 2030 

7.2         City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 

7.3         Council Business Plan 2011 to 2015 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

                  Appendix 1 
  

 
 

The Equality Improvement Priorities  2011 – 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

 
“An equal society protects and promotes equal, real freedom and substantive opportunity to live in the ways people value and 

would choose, so that everyone can flourish.   An equal society recognises different people’s different needs, situations and 

goals and removes the barriers that limit what people can do and can be” 

As a council, we are committed to promoting equality and diversity in terms of the people we serve, our workforce, the partners we work 
with and the services we deliver.  Our ambition is to be the best City in the UK. We will only achieve our ambition if as a city we work to 
reduce disadvantage, discrimination, and inequalities of opportunity. Failure to tackle discrimination and to provide equality of opportunity 
can have a negative impact on people, undermines society and costs our economy. 
 
We want to inspire pride in our city and all our communities. No one in Leeds should be held back from reaching their potential because 
of who they are, or where they come from. It is all our responsibility to tackle the causes of inequality and build a stronger, fairer and 
more cohesive society.  
 
The Equality Improvement Priorities have been developed from the priorities outlined in the City Priority Plan and the Council Business 
Plan.  They provide a summary of our strategic equality analysis and our strategic equality objectives which are supported by specific 
work across the council.   Progress against the Equality Improvement Priorities 2011 – 2015  will be reported on an annual basis. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 35



 2

 
City Priority Plan - Best city ………..for children  and young people 

 
Priority - Do well at all levels of learning and have the skills for life 
(taken from the Children and Young People’s Plan) 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Support children from all equality 
communities to be ready for learning 

There are lower levels of attainment for some BME communities, people with special 
educational needs and those from poorer areas 

 
 

City Priority Plan - Best city for………..communities 
 
Priority - Reduce crime levels and their impact across Leeds 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Address the impact of burglary on 
Vulnerable Communities 

There is an identified need to better assess the impact of burglary on emerging 
communities. 

Tackle domestic violence and protect and 
support the most vulnerable young people. 

The overwhelming majority of domestic violence is perpetrated by men against women and 
children.   

Improve citywide approaches to dealing 
with hate crime    

Disability, race, homophobic and transphobic hate crime is experienced by many people 

 
 
Priority - Increase a sense of belonging that builds cohesive and harmonious communities 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

There is a sense of belonging that builds 
cohesive and harmonious communities  
 

In 2010/11 a small but concerning trend in youth related anti-social behaviour and damage 
which suggest deliberate targeting of vulnerable victims (adults with learning disabilities, 
BME residents in predominantly White British neighbourhoods, gay or lesbian couples) 
was recognised. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 36



 3

 

City Priority Plan - Best city …………. to live 
 
Priority - Maximise regeneration investment to increase housing choice and affordability within sustainable neighbourhoods 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Ensure that housing and regeneration 
investment meets the changing needs of 
individuals and communities.     

Households headed by women with children, BME groups and those living in the social 
rented sector are more likely to live in overcrowded or substandard housing.  There are 
also significantly higher numbers of BME people and people with disabilities who are 
unemployed 

 
 
Priority - Improve housing conditions and energy efficiency 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Improve energy efficiency Many households containing people recovering from long term illness, disabled people, 
and  pensioners can not afford to heat their homes 

 
 

City Priority Plan - Best city……….for health and wellbeing 
 

Priority - Give people choice and control over their health and social care services 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

We will support individuals from all 
communities to access  social care through 
personalised budgets and direct payments 

The equality analysis of access to personalised budgets and direct payments is ongoing.   

 
 
Priority - Support more people to live safely in their own homes 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

To support adults whose circumstances 
make them vulnerable to live safe and 
independent lives    

The group with the largest proportion of safeguarding investigations in 2010/2011 were 
service users with learning disabilities 

 
 

P
age 37



 4

 
Priority - Make sure that people who are the poorest improve their health the fastest 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

All universal social care services are 
equally accessible to  members of all 
communities 

The equality analysis of access to universal social care services is ongoing.   

To commission targeted adult social care 
services for specific equality communities 
and to ensure these services are effective 

Equality analysis from specific reviews is used to inform future commissioning (or de-
commissioning) of services at both a service and sector wide level 

New migrant communities effectively 
access appropriate health and social care 
services 

Some groups eg Eritrean women, and people whose cultures prevent mental health issues 
being  explicitly recognized, do not effectively access health and social care. 

 
 

City Priority Plan - Best city ………….for business 
 

Priorities - Create more jobs and Improve skills 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Increase access to employment 
opportunities and up-skill the workforce 

There are lower levels of skills and employment amongst some communities in particular 
some BME groups, and disabled people.   

 
 
Priority - Support the sustainable growth of the Leeds’ economy 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Improve financial inclusion Lack of access to financial services disproportionately affects lone parents (typically 
female) disabled people, people with mental health illness, and those living in poorer 
areas.   

 
 
Priority - Improve journey times and the reliability of public transport 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Enable access for all to local services, 
education and employment centres by 
public transport 

Disabled and elderly people have specific concerns in accessing transport 

P
age 38



 5

 
Priority - Get more people involved in the city’s cultural opportunities 

Equality focus (objective) Equality analysis 

Ensure the continuing development of the 
council’s cultural offer, including the 
successful transition to the new 
arrangements for sport and libraries 

People from poorer areas, BME people and disabled people do not access sport services 
as much as others. 
Low numbers of disabled people access libraries 

Enhance the quality of Leeds’ Parks Disabled people, those from a BME background, and men tend to visit parks less than 
other groups 

 

 
Council Business Plan 

 
The Council Business Plan draws together aspects of the City Priority Plan with those areas and priorities specific to the council itself.  
There are a number of cross cutting equality objectives included in the Council Business Plan which provide the building blocks for 
ensuring that equality is embedded in all our service delivery and as an employer.  They are outlined here: 
 
Equality Performance Area - Understanding our communities.  Leeds communities are changing and it is vital that we have a clear 
understanding of who our citizens are in order to provide appropriate services in the most appropriate way. 
 

Equality focus (objective) Council Value 

There is good evidence of the equalities profile of Leeds, based on national and local data, which is 
regularly reviewed 

Working with communities  

 
Equality Performance Area - Showing leadership and working in partnership.   We will give due consideration to equality and diversity 
when we develop policies and make decisions.  We will ensure that we fully understand the impacts of  changed funding on different 
communities, and take this into account when making decisions  
 

Equality focus (objective) Council Value 

Councillors and Officers have a reputation for championing equality issues and ensure that the equality 
issues relevant to Leeds are taken into account when making major decisions 

Being open, honest and 
trusted  

 
 
 

P
age 39



 6

Equality Performance Area - Involving our communities - We will ensure communities are effectively able to influence what we do 
    

Equality focus (objective) Council Value 

Equality groups are integrally involved in consultation and engagement activities Working with communities 

 
Equality Performance Area - A modern and diverse workforce – We will understand the make up of our workforce and work to ensure it 
is representative of the population of Leeds 
 

Equality focus (objective) Council Value  

To make LCC an ‘employer of choice’ for people from groups in our communities whose diverse 
backgrounds are not yet fully represented in our workforce 

Treating people fairly 
 

To demonstrate increased engagement, year on year, for staff from groups whose diversity is not yet 
fully represented in our workforce. 

To improve opportunities for progression to senior levels in the organisation particularly for black, and 
minority ethnic and disabled staff 

 
Further detail is in supporting documentation which is a available on the council website, and includes: 
 
Consultation and Involvement in Developing Equality Objectives 
Equality and Diversity Position Statement 2011 
Equality Analysis, Objectives and Activities 2011 - 2015 
Equality and Diversity Policy 2011 - 2015 
Approach to Embedding Equality 2011 - 2015 

 
For enquiries about Leeds City Council’s equality improvement priorities 2011 - 2015 please contact the Equality Team: 
By telephone: 0113 2474190 
 
By text: 07891 270162 
 
By email: equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 
Website: www.leeds.gov.uk/equality 

By post: 
Equality Team 
Ground Floor, 
Civic Hall 
Calverley Street 
Leeds  
LS1 1UR 
 

This publication can also be made available in large print, Braille, on audio tape, audio cd and on computer disk. 

P
age 40



 

 
Leeds City Council has adopted the Equalities Review 2007 definition of an equal society 
which strengthens our approach to equality and diversity.  The definition is: 
 

“An equal society protects and promotes equal, real freedom and substantive 
opportunity to live in the ways people value and would choose, so that everyone can 
flourish.   An equal society recognises different people’s different needs, situations 

and goals and removes the barriers that limit what people can do and can be” 
 

The council is committed to: 
 

• eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 

• advancing equality of opportunity; and  

• fostering good relations within and between our communities with a view to building 
good community relations 

 
The Policy is in line with Leeds City Council’s duties and responsibilities under the Equality 
Act 2010.  
 
Our aims are that: 
 

• all our existing and potential service users are treated with dignity and respect; 

• our partnership and contract arrangements promote equality of opportunity; 

• we will work with and between communities to help develop and strengthen 
relationships; 

• our workforce will be reflective of all sections of society; and 

• each employee feels respected and able to give of their best. 
 
We will treat everyone with the same attention, courtesy and respect regardless of: 

• Age,  

• Disability,  

• Race or racial group (including colour, nationality and ethnic origin or national origins),  

• Religion or belief,  

• Sex  

• Marriage and Civil Partnership,  

• Gender reassignment,  

• Pregnancy and maternity  

• Sexual orientation,  

• Caring responsibilities,  

• Social class, or  

• Trade union activity.  
 
We will take all reasonable steps to ensure that we do not unlawfully discriminate. 
Our commitment is to create an environment both for staff and people of Leeds:  

• that promotes dignity and respect for all; 

• where people are treated fairly and according to their needs; 

• where no form of intimidation, bullying or harassment is tolerated; and 

• in which individual differences and the contributions of all are recognised and valued. 

Equality and Diversity Policy 
 

2011 - 2015 

Appendix 2 

Page 41



 

This policy applies to: 
 

• all council Members; 

• all service users and those applying to access services; 

• all contractors and sub contractors; and 

• all employees, whether part-time, full-time or temporary, and all job applicants. 
 

Roles and responsibilities 
 
We all have a right to be treated fairly and with dignity and respect. For this to happen we 
have a responsibility to ensure that our own actions and behaviours are equally fair and that 
we respect the dignity of others.  
 
Less favourable treatment should be challenged directly, either by the recipient or by any 
witnesses.  Where this is not possible, for whatever reason, then the complaints procedure 
can be used.  
 
Good practice 
 
In all our activities we will: 

• give due regard to equality and diversity when reviewing existing and developing new 
strategies/ policies and services/ functions to ensure that we 

- secure flexible and fair working practices, 
- provide excellent services and  
- fairly award contracts, and commission services 

• engage and involve interested groups and individuals (both internal and external to 
the council) with our decision making processes 

• deal with all complaints of discrimination, harassment or victimisation promptly and 
with sensitivity to all those involved 

• take all opportunities to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations 
within and between our communities. 

 
In delivering our services we will: 

• assess the needs of our existing and potential service users and ensure fair access to 
our services. This includes making reasonable adjustments to enable disabled people 
to use our services; 

• ensure the availability of appropriate support services. This includes translation and 
interpretation and making key information available in a range of alternative formats,   

• provide access points for reporting hate crimes. 
In employment, learning and development we will: 

• provide increased opportunities in areas of under-representation. This could include 
school placements, supported trainee schemes or mentoring; 

• continue to progress equal pay; 

• assess the needs of our existing and potential disabled employees and provide 
appropriate reasonable adjustments, and 

• take appropriate positive action in recruitment and selection. 
 
 

Page 42



 

 
Support to implement the policy 
 
All our policies and practices are supported by appropriate training or briefing sessions and 
guidance. For the equality and diversity policy: 

• general and bespoke equality and diversity training is available through Human 
Resources, and 

• advice and guidance is also available from the Equality Team. 
 
Monitoring 
 
All our policies contribute to our overall aims around equality. Key policies – such as those 
relating to employment, service delivery, community engagement, commissioning and 
procurement - are specifically designed to promote equality of opportunity and protect people 
against unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation. We collect and analyse data 
relating to these areas of policy, to identify trends and areas of inequality, and then take 
appropriate action.  
 
Communications 
 
The equality and diversity policy is available on the intranet and our external website.  We 
will use all opportunities to promote the policy. This includes key messages, induction events 
for new staff, and specific equality and diversity events. 
 
Responsibility for reviewing this document 
 
The Head of Equality will be responsible for the bi-annual review and update of this policy. 
 
 
 
 
For enquiries about this policy please contact the Equality Team: 
 
By email: equalityteam@leeds.gov.uk 
 
By telephone: 0113 2474190 
 
By text: 07891 270162 
 
Website: www.leeds.gov.uk/equality  
 

By post: 
Equality Team 
Ground Floor, 
Civic Hall 
Calverley Street 
Leeds  
LS1 1UR 
 

 
 
This publication can also be made available in large print, Braille, on audio tape, audio cd 
and on computer disk. 
 
 
 

Page 43



 

If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, please telephone 
the number below and state the name of your language.  We will then put you on hold while 
we contact an interpreter.  The number is 0113 247 4190.  
 
Arabic: 
 

 
Bengali: 
 

 
Cantonese: 
 

Hindi: 
 

 
Punjabi: 

 
Kurdish: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44



 

Tigrinya: 
 

 
 
 
 
Urdu: 

 
Czech: 
 
Jestliže nemluvíte anglicky a potřebujete, aby vám někdo pomohl vysvětlit tento dokument, 
prosím zavolejte na níže uvedené číslo a uveďte svůj jazyk. Potom vás požádáme, abyste 
nepokládal(-a) telefon a mezitím zkontaktujeme tlumočníka. 
 
French: 
 
Si vous ne parlez pas anglais et que vous avez besoin d'aide pour comprendre ce 
document, veuillez téléphoner au numéro ci-dessous et indiquez  votre langue. Nous vous 
demanderons d'attendre pendant que nous contactons un(e) interprètre. 
 
Polish: 
 
Jeżeli nie mówią Państwo po angielsku i potrzebują pomocy w zrozumieniu tego dokumentu, 
prosimy zadzwonić pod poniższy numer telefonu. Po podaniu nazwy swojego ojczystego 
języka prosimy poczekać – w tym czasie będziemy kontaktować się z tłumaczem. 
 
Slovak: 
Ak nehovoríte anglicky a potrebujete, aby vám niekto pomohol vysvetliť tento dokument, 
prosím zavolajte na nižšie uvedené číslo a uveďte svoj jazyk. Potom vás požiadame, aby ste 
nepokladali telefón a medzitým skontaktujeme tlmočníka. 
 
 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: Sources of work for the Scrutiny Board 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues 

1. Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from a 
strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and respond 
to issues of high public interest. 

 
2. This report provides information and guidance on potential sources of work and areas 

of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.  In consultation with the relevant 
Director(s), Executive Board Member(s) and Partnership Chair, the Scrutiny Board is 
requested to consider and confirm the areas of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal 
year. 

 
Recommendation 
 
3. Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with 

those present at the meeting to:  
 

(i) confirm the areas of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year 
(ii) authorise the Chair, in conjunction with officers, to draw up inquiry terms of 

reference for subsequent approval by the Scrutiny Board. 
 
 

 

 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  2474553 

Agenda Item 11

Page 47



 

1.0 Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 To assist the Scrutiny Board in effectively managing its workload for the forthcoming 

municipal year, this report provides information and guidance on potential sources of 
work and areas of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.   

 
2.0 Background information 
 
2.1 Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from a 

strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and respond 
to issues of high public interest. 

 
2.2 The alignment of the Scrutiny Boards to the Strategic Partnership Boards continues 

to promote a more strategic and outward looking scrutiny function that focuses on 
the City Priorities, as set out within the City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015. 

 
2.3 The City Priority Plan was established to replace the Leeds Strategic Plan.  This city-

wide partnership plan summarises the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by 
the Council, and its partners, over the next 4 years.  As such they are the “must-do” 
priorities or “obsessions” for each partnership and may be supported by more 
detailed action plans as the partnerships sees fit. 

 
3.0  Main issues 
 
 Alignment with the Strategic Partnership Boards 
 
3.1 As set out within its terms of reference, this Scrutiny Board is authorised to review or 

scrutinise the performance of the Safer and Stronger Communities Board.  In doing 
so, the Scrutiny Board will review outcomes, targets and priorities within the 
Business Plan and “Best City….for communities” priorities, as set out within the City 
Priority Plan.  These priorities are as follows: 

 

• Reduce crime levels and their impact across Leeds 

• Effectively tackle and reduce anti-social behaviour in our communities 

• Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean 

• Increase a sense of belonging that builds cohesive and harmonious communities 
 
3.2 The Scrutiny Board will also act as ‘critical friend’ to the Safer and Stronger 

Communities Board.  In line with this approach, the Scrutiny Board will assess how 
well the Partnership is working in practice, with particular focus on how well it has 
increased the pace of change in relation to a specific priority area and also more 
generally in terms of tackling poverty and addressing inequality within Leeds. 

 
3.3 In determining items of scrutiny work this year, the Scrutiny Board is also 

encouraged to explore how it can add value to the work of the Partnership in 
delivering on the city priorities. 

 
3.4   To assist the Scrutiny Board, a copy of the terms of reference of the Safer and 

Stronger Communities Board is attached (Appendix 1).  Also attached is a briefing 
paper setting out the structure of the Safer and Stronger Communities Board and 
highlighting the priorities and planned areas of work for 2012 (Appendix 2). 

Page 48



 

 Other sources of Scrutiny work 
 
3.5 As well as the focus on partnership scrutiny, Scrutiny Boards have and will continue 

to challenge service directorates. The Scrutiny Boards’ terms of reference are 
determined by reference to Directors’ delegations. 

 
3.6 The Scrutiny Board may therefore undertake pieces of scrutiny work in line with its 

terms of reference, as considered appropriate.  Such pieces of work may arise from 
the Scrutiny Board’s performance monitoring role.  However, other common sources 
include requests for scrutiny and other corporate referrals. 

 
3.7 In its capacity as a ‘Crime and Disorder Committee’, this particular Scrutiny Board will 

also be required to consider any referrals made by elected members to review or 
scrutinise local crime and disorder matters.  The Board also has powers to review or 
scrutinise decisions made (or action taken), in connection with the discharge by the 
‘responsible authorities’ of their crime and disorder functions.  Further details are set 
out within the joint protocol between Scrutiny and the local Community Safety 
Partnership.   

 
 Areas of Scrutiny work brought forward from the previous year 
 
3.8 At its meeting on 3rd April 2012, the former Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny 

Board considered an update report on the impact and progress made by the new 
multi-agency Leeds Anti-Social Behaviour Team (LASBT).  In doing so, the Board 
acknowledged the request made by the Executive Board for Scrutiny to examine the 
integration of the Noise Service in the new municipal year and find a better solution 
for people experiencing domestic noise nuisance.  The Executive Board also 
requested that Scrutiny continues to monitor the work of the LASBT and seeks 
assurance that the handling of anti-social behaviour has been consistently achieved 
across the city.  The Scrutiny Board recommended that such issues be taken forward 
by its successor Board in 2012/13. 

 
4.0 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 It is recognised that in order to enable Scrutiny to focus on strategic areas of priority, 
each Scrutiny Board needs to establish an early dialogue with the Director(s) and 
Executive Board Member(s) holding the relevant portfolios and also the Partnership 
Chair. 

4.1.2 The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods; the Executive Board Member for 
Environment; and the Executive Board Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning and 
Support Services (also Chair of the Safer and Stronger Communities Board) have 
been invited to attend today’s meeting to discuss potential areas of scrutiny work this 
year. 

 
4.1.3 Also attached for Members consideration are the latest Executive Board minutes 

(Appendix 3) and the Council’s current Forward Plan relating to this Board’s portfolio 
(Appendix 4).  

 
 

Page 49



 

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration. 

4.2.1 The Scrutiny Board Procedure Rules now state that, where appropriate, all terms of 
reference for work undertaken by Scrutiny Boards will include ‘ to review how and to 
what effect consideration has been given to the impact of a service or policy on all 
equality areas, as set out in the Council’s Equality and Diversity Scheme’.  

4.3 Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 The terms of reference of the Scrutiny Boards promote a more strategic and outward 
looking Scrutiny function that focuses on the City Priorities.  As set out in paragraph 
3.1 above, this particular Scrutiny Board is authorised to review or scrutinise the 
performance of the Safer and Stronger Communities Board.  In doing so, the 
Scrutiny Board will review outcomes, targets and priorities within the Business Plan 
and “Best City….for communities” priorities, as set out within the City Priority Plan.   

 

4.4 Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 Over the last few years of Scrutiny Board work, experience has shown that the 
process is more effective and adds greater value if the Board seeks to minimise the 
number of substantial inquiries running at one time and focus its resources on one 
key issue at a time.   This view was echoed within the findings of the KPMG external 
audit report 2009 on the Scrutiny function in Leeds.  

 
4.4.2 Before deciding to undertake an inquiry, the Scrutiny Board is advised to consider the 

current workload of the Scrutiny Board and the available resources to carry out the 
work.    

 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report has no specific legal implications. 
 
4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 There are no risk management implications relevant to this report. 

5.0 Conclusions 

5.1 Scrutiny Boards are responsible for ensuring that items of scrutiny work come from a 
strategic approach as well as a need to challenge service performance and respond 
to issues of high public interest.  This report provides information and guidance on 
potential sources of work and areas of priority within the Board’s terms of reference.  
In consultation with the relevant Director(s), Executive Board Member(s) and 
Partnership Chair, the Scrutiny Board is requested to consider and confirm the areas 
of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year. 

 
6.0 Recommendations 
 
6.1 Members are requested to use the attached information and the discussion with 

those present at the meeting to:  
 

(i) confirm the areas of Scrutiny for the forthcoming municipal year 

Page 50



 

(ii) authorise the Chair, in conjunction with officers, to draw up inquiry terms of 
reference for subsequent approval by the Scrutiny Board. 

 
 

7.0 Background papers1 

• City Priority Plan 2011 – 2015  

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 

Recently Updated - minor amendments included awaiting Chair’s approval 
 

Safer and Stronger Communities Board - Leeds Initiative 

Terms of Reference 
 

Purpose 

The purpose of the Safer and Stronger Communities Board is to provide strong and effective 

leadership, to support effective partnership work, and take action to deliver the aspirations of 

the Vision for Leeds.  In particular, its key objectives are to join up activities to maximise 

outcomes, and to create a culture where partnership work in the interests of local people is built 

into the way all agencies, sectors and organisations act. 

   

Strategic Leadership 

The board will lead the long-term strategy for the city for safer and stronger communities and 

co-ordinate the partnership actions to achieve the priorities in the city priority plan. 

 

Accountability 

The Leeds Initiative is not a separate legal entity. Each partner within the Leeds Initiative 

retains its own functions and responsibilities. This Safer and Stronger Communities Board is 

accountable to the Leeds Initiative Board, which will provide strategic direction. It provides a 

focus for the agreement of shared action between partners and constructive challenge to make 

sure that the partnership work improves outcomes. To meet this objective this board will 

performance manage the delivery of the city priority plan.  

 

Roles 

The chair will be the Executive Board Member for Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support 

Services. 

 

The vice-chairs will be selected from the West Yorkshire Police and third sector members. 

 

Executive accountability will be with the Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods of Leeds 

City Council. 

 

Servicing will be the responsibility of the  Environment and Neighbourhoods directorate and 

Leeds Initiative office. 

 

Responsibilities 

The Safer and Stronger Communities Board will: 

§ lead the delivery of these themes in the Vision for Leeds and the city priority plan; 

§ develop, deliver and report on an action plan to deliver the objectives in the city priority 

plan; 

§ provide a framework within which partners may agree to commission services together, 

with pooled or aligned budgets; 

Page 53



Appendix 1 

Recently Updated - minor amendments included awaiting Chair’s approval 
 

§ act as an advocate for the contribution, which these themes make to public policy and 

partnership working in the city, and support the culture and practice of partnership 

working; 

§ develop and sponsor new activities, which support the aspirations of the Vision for 

Leeds in these areas 

§ tackle underperformance against the priorities and targets; 

§ identify opportunities for greater efficiency, effectiveness and economy of delivery 

through a common approach and innovative solutions to areas of policy, planning, 

performance management, consultation, reporting and communication, resource 

allocation and delivery of services in the city and take action as appropriate; 

§ evaluate the impact of interventions, capture learning and disseminate good practice 

across partners in the Leeds Initiative; and 

§ influence local, regional and national government policy initiatives linked to these 

themes.  

 

Linkages 

This group is one of five strategic partnership boards reporting to Leeds Initiative Board. 

Together these bodies are responsible for the entire Vision for Leeds and the city priority plan.  

It has links to a wider network of partnerships, some of which it will commission to deliver areas 

of its agenda, and it will link with the agendas of other partnership boards, specifically: 

§ Safer Leeds Partnership  

§ Stronger Communities Partnership  

§ Cleaner Greener City Partnership 

 

It will also closely link with locality work, which will be led directly by the Leeds Initiative Board.  

Others are wider networks or groups, whose interests it will reflect, for example:  

§ Migration Partnership 

§ Third Sector Partnership  

 

Equality and community engagement  

The board will have due regard to equality in all its activities, and will take steps to demonstrate 

it has consulted with communities appropriately in all its decisions. 

 

Membership 

1. ALMO/BITMO  

2. Chair or vice chair of Cleaner Greener Partnership 

3. Chair or vice chair of Harmonious Communities 

4. Chair or vice chair of Safer Leeds 

5. City Centre Business 

6. LCC Children’s Services 

7. LCC Democratic Executive Member: Environment  

Page 54



Appendix 1 

Recently Updated - minor amendments included awaiting Chair’s approval 
 

8. LCC Democratic Executive Member: Neighbourhoods, Planning and Support Services 

9. LCC Democratic Opposition parties Leeds City Council (Conservative) 

10. LCC Democratic Opposition parties Leeds City Council (Liberal Democrat) 

11. LCC Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate Senior Officer  

12. Leeds University/Leeds Met/FE College 

13. Third Sector - community relations/ intelligence 

14. Third Sector - community sector 

15. Third Sector – migration  

16. Third Sector – Third Sector Leeds representative 

17. West Yorkshire Police 

18. West Yorkshire Probation Service  

19. Optional: LCC Democratic Scrutiny Chair 

20. Up to 2 co-opted members to add specific expertise or perspective  

 

The membership of this group includes partners in Leeds, which contribute to the achievement 

of the Vision and objectives for this theme in the city priority plan. 

 

Officers in attendance  

Officers from Leeds City Council, Leeds Initiative, and other partners will be invited to attend 

the board at the discretion of the chair. Their role will include advising the group, preparing 

agendas, minutes, reports and briefings for the board, and following up actions arising from 

discussions and decisions made by the board.  

 

Openness 

Meetings are not open to the public, but papers, agendas and minutes will be published on the 

Leeds Initiative website promptly.  A forward plan of meetings will be published on the Leeds 

Initiative website.  

 

 

These Terms of Reference were agreed: 
 
 
 Date:  06 June 2012 
 
 
 Signed:  
 
          
 Cllr Peter Gruen, Chair, Safer and Stronger Communities Board 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix 2 

 

Safer and Stronger Communities Board 2011 – 2015. 
Priorities and planned work areas - 2012 Update 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Safer and Stronger Communities Board priorities: 
The Safer and Stronger Communities Board have agreed that at each partnership 
meeting there should be 1 substantive item (that draws together the different elements of 
the safer and stronger communities agenda) 1 item alternately from each of the sub-
board areas of work namely: Safer, Stronger and Cleaner-Greener, 1 update alternately 
from each of the other 4 strategic partnership boards (to identify areas of cross-board 
working or interest) and the assessment of each of the 4 scorecards relating to Safer 
and Stronger Communities. 
 
The 4 priorities for 2012 for the Safer and Stronger Board substantive item have been 
identified as:  

- Restorative Approaches,  
- Impact of Welfare Reform on Communities 
- Localities and Localism  
- Safeguarding Communities 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Safer and Stronger 
Communities Board 

   

Safer Leeds 

Partnership 

Stronger Communities  
Partnership 

Cleaner  
Greener  
working 

 

Migration 
Partnership 

Safeguarding 
Communities 

 
(Linked to Safer) 

Third Sector 
Partnership 

 

(Linked to Main Board) 

Gypsy Roma 
Traveller Group 

 

(Linked to Health) 

Others: 
*Community 
Development 
*Intergenerational 
*Leeds Involvement 
Strategy 

 

Page 57



  Appendix 2 

 

Safer Leeds Partnership priorities: 
- Reduce crime and its impact across Leeds 

o Reducing the levels of domestic burglary 
o Reducing the levels of violent crime 
o Reducing the risks of offending and re-offending 

- Effectively tackling anti-social behaviour in communities 
o Establishing the city wide picture of anti-social behaviour 

- Improving safeguarding and reducing vulnerability 
o Domestic violence 
o Hate crime and community tension 
o Preventing violent extremism 

 
 
Stronger Leeds Partnership priorities: 

- Improve local engagement with and by communities 
o Availability of community support and capacity building 
o Improved access to resources locally and externally 

- Improved co-ordination for supporting communities 
o Improved community and neighbourhood intelligence 
o Understanding of targeted interventions 

- Third sector involvement in local communities 
o Involvement strategy on participation, volunteering and giving 
o Third sector partnership 

- Improved relations with designated communities 
o BME communities 
o Faith communities 
o Migrant/ Newly established communities 
o Gypsy/ Roma/ Traveller communities 
o Capacity for understanding/ delivering good relations 

 
 
 

Page 58



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 16TH MAY, 2012 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor K Wakefield in the Chair 

 Councillors J Blake, M Dobson,  
R Finnigan, S Golton, P Gruen, R Lewis, 
A Ogilvie and L Yeadon 

 
   Councillor J Procter – Substitute Member 
 
 

243 Substitute Member  
Under the terms of Executive Procedure Rule 2.3, Councillor J Procter was 
invited to attend the meeting on behalf of Councillor A Carter. 
 

244 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  
RESOLVED – That the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows:- 
 
(a) Appendix 1 to the report referred to in Minute No. 259 under the terms of 

Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3) and on the grounds that 
the information within the Appendix contains information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of a particular person and is part of an 
ongoing legal case. It is considered that the public interest in treating 
this information as exempt outweighs the public interest in disclosing it 
and that this element of the report should be treated as exempt under 
Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4.(3) as it is subject to 
litigation privilege. 

 
245 Declaration of Interests  

Councillor Wakefield declared a personal interest in the agenda item entitled, 
‘Aire Valley Leeds Local Development Order 2: Extensions, Alterations and 
Changes of Use: Draft for Public Consultation’ due to being a member of the 
Yorkshire Wildlife Trust (Minute No. 249 referred).  
 
Councillor R Lewis declared a personal interest in the agenda item entitled, 
‘Aire Valley Leeds Local Development Order 2: Extensions, Alterations and 
Changes of Use: Draft for Public Consultation’ due to being a member of the 
Aire Valley Regeneration Board (Minute No. 249 referred).  
 
Councillor J Procter declared a personal interest in the agenda item entitled, 
‘Aire Valley Leeds Local Development Order 2: Extensions, Alterations and 
Changes of Use: Draft for Public Consultation’ due to being a member of the 
Aire Valley Regeneration Board (Minute No. 249 referred).  

Page 59



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

 
Councillor Ogilvie declared a personal interest in the agenda item entitled, 
‘Aire Valley Leeds Local Development Order 2: Extensions, Alterations and 
Changes of Use: Draft for Public Consultation’ due to being a member of the 
Aire Valley Regeneration Board (Minute No. 249 referred).  
 
Councillor Golton declared a personal interest in the agenda item entitled, 
’Community Food Growing’, due to being Vice President of Leeds and District 
Gardeners’ Federation (Minute No. 258 referred).  
 
Councillor Gruen declared a personal interest in the agenda item entitled, 
‘Future of Cow Close, Drighlington, Rawdon and Shadwell Libraries’ as a local 
resident of Shadwell (Minute No. 257 referred). 
 
Councillor Finnigan declared a personal interest in the agenda items entitled, 
‘Red Hall Relocation Strategy and Design and Cost Report for Farnley Hall 
Coach House’ and ‘Aire Valley Leeds Local Development Order 2: 
Extensions, Alterations and Changes of Use: Draft for Public Consultation’ 
due to being a member of Plans Panel (East) (Minute Nos. 248 and 249 
referred respectively). 
 

246 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 11th April 2012 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

247 Matters Arising from the Minutes  
Minute No. 239 – 11th April 2012 - ‘Illegal Money Lending Project – Progress 
Report’ 
Responding to Members’ enquiries, the Board was informed that work 
continued on the compilation of a further report to Executive Board regarding 
the actions which could be taken to address the problems caused by legal 
money lenders across the city, and that such a report would be submitted to 
the Board for consideration in due course.  
 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE ECONOMY 
 

248 Red Hall Relocation Strategy and Design and Cost Report for : Farnley 
Hall Coach House  
The Director of City Development submitted a report on the proposed 
development of a planning brief for the Red Hall site in order to allow its future 
development, whilst also outlining proposals to undertake feasibility works at 
Whinmoor Grange, which would enable further consideration to take place 
before proposals were developed and further consultation undertaken.  In 
addition, the report also sought approval to incur the necessary expenditure 
from scheme 16442 on the Red Hall Relocation Strategy. 
 
Reassurance was given to the Board that new horticultural nursery facilities 
would be established as part of the proposals detailed within the submitted 
report. 
 

Page 60



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

A Member emphasised the need to ensure that appropriate consultation 
exercises were undertaken on any future proposals which may be formed in 
relation to the potential development within the East Leeds Extension area. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the progress made in respect of the relocation strategy for Red 

Hall, be noted. 
 

(b) That the sale of the Stable Block at Red Hall to the Rugby Football 
League be noted. 

 
(c) That authority be given to spend £1,270,000 on the Red Hall 

Relocation Strategy, including the refurbishment of Farnley Hall Coach 
House utilising capital receipts from the sale of assets at Red Hall and 
Farnley, the decant of staff to Temple Newsam following the sale of the 
Stable Block to the Rugby Football League and to assist with the 
development of the planning brief and feasibility works highlighted 
within the submitted report. 

 
(d) That approval be given to the ongoing works for the creation of a new 

horticultural nursery with ancillary office facilities for area staff requiring 
a base in the east of the city at Whinmoor Grange. 

 
(e) That officers be requested to develop a detailed planning brief for Red 

Hall and also to undertake feasibility works for both Red Hall and 
Whinmoor Grange, in order to allow future development of the Red Hall 
site.  

 
249 Aire Valley Leeds Enterprise Zone Local Development Order 2: 

Extensions, Alterations and Changes of Use: Draft for Public 
Consultation  
The Director of City Development submitted a report outlining a draft of a 
Local Development Order (LDO) which was proposed to support the Aire 
Valley Leeds Enterprise Zone by simplifying the planning process in the area. 
The proposed LDO specifically related to allowing certain extensions, 
alterations and change of use of industrial and warehouse units on the 
Enterprise Zone sites and in the wider industrial areas of the Aire Valley 
(Cross Green, Stourton and Hunslet). 
 
Members emphasised the need for the proposals detailed within the 
submitted report to be progressed as a matter of priority. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the draft of the ‘Aire Valley Leeds Enterprise Zone – Local 

Development Order (2): Extensions, Alterations and Changes of use’, 
as set out within Appendix 1 to the submitted report be approved, and 
that agreement be given to the Chief Planning Officer submitting this, 
together with the statement of reasons, to the Secretary of State. 

 

Page 61



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

(b) That subject to the Secretary of State not making a direction under 
section 61B(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended, the Aire Valley Leeds Local Development Order (2): 
Extensions, Alterations and Changes of use be adopted. 

 
(Under the City Council’s Constitution, a decision may be declared as being 
exempt from Call In if it is considered that any delay would seriously prejudice 
the Council’s or the public interest. Given that the Enterprise Zone 
commenced on 1st April 2012, the timescales for preparing and consulting on 
LDOs have been very tight. Although the 1st April deadline for adoption of the 
LDO cannot be achieved it is important that the LDO is in place as soon as 
possible after the start of the Enterprise Zone therefore the report has been 
declared as not eligible for call-in). 

250 Leeds Site Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD) Scoping 
Paper  
The Director of City Development submitted a report, which following 
consideration by Development Plan Panel on 6th March 2012, sought approval 
to the proposed scope of Leeds Site Allocations Development Plan Document 
(DPD).   
 
Members received reassurance regarding the importance of a phased 
approach being take towards the release of sites for development, the need 
for the nature of new development to meet the demand which currently 
existed and also the fact that every effort would be made to ensure that the 
proposed timescales for the delivery of the Site Allocations DPD were 
adhered to. 
 
Responding to an enquiry, the Board received an update on the site allocation 
process for Gypsies and Travellers and also received further information on 
those areas which would not be allocated via the Site Allocations DPD 
process. 
 
In considering the Site Allocation process, Members highlighted that in order 
to ensure that any future developments were sustainable, such developments 
needed to be accompanied by the provision of appropriate levels of 
infrastructure, such as schools.  
 
The Board noted the concerns of two Members in respect of the proposals 
detailed within the submitted report. In addition, it was emphasised that in 
order to protect the Council’s position, there was a need to progress the DPD 
site allocation process as a matter of priority. Also, the importance of Ward 
Member involvement in this process was emphasised and officers were 
requested to give consideration to the ways in which such Member 
involvement could be maximised wherever possible.  
 
RESOLVED – That the scope of the Site Allocations Development Plan 
Document, as outlined within the submitted report, be approved.  
 

Page 62



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

(Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillors Golton and 
Finnigan both required it to be recorded that they respectively abstained from 
voting on the decisions referred to within this minute) 
 

251 Neighbourhood Plan frontrunners: agreement to spend £80,000 towards 
plan preparation in Boston Spa, Holbeck, Kippax and Otley.  
The Director of City Development submitted a report detailing the aims of the 
neighbourhood planning frontrunner scheme, outlining proposals regarding 
the funding which had been secured from the Department of Communities 
and Local Government, whilst also providing an overview of the 
neighbourhood planning process and its implications arising from this process 
for the Council. 
 
Members noted the level of interest which had been received to date from 
organisations regarding Neighbourhood Plans and acknowledged that the 
cost of developing such Plans would vary on a case by case basis. The Board 
highlighted the need to ensure that appropriate levels of cohesive support 
were provided by the Council to those organisations throughout the city which 
had expressed an interest in developing a plan. In addition, the Board 
welcomed a suggestion that those organisations which were at the forefront of 
Neighbourhood Plan development could provide guidance to those in the 
earlier stages of the process. 
 
Emphasis was placed upon the vital role which would be played by Area 
Committees, Ward Members and local communities in the Neighbourhood 
Plan process. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the release and spend of £80,000 towards supporting the 

neighbourhood pilot areas be approved and that the associated 
spending authority be delegated to the Director of City Development in 
consultation with the appropriate Area Committee and the Executive 
Member for Development and the Economy. 

 
(b) That the progress made, together with the specific issues in each of the 

four pilot areas, be noted. 
 
(c) That a further report be submitted to Executive Board in June 2012 

which will outline the Council’s general approach towards 
neighbourhood planning, including the establishment of governance 
arrangements and the publication of a comprehensive guidance note to 
assist communities working to prepare neighbourhood plans. 

 
252 Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document: "Post 

Submission Changes" - Further Revisions  
Further to Minute No. 238, 11th April 2012, the Director of City Development 
submitted a report which sought approval for a further change to be made to 
the Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document (DPD), 
namely the inclusion of the post submission changes. 
 

Page 63



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

RESOLVED – That the new supporting text and policy wording (as detailed 
within paragraph 3.2 of the submitted report), be approved for inclusion within 
the Post Submission Schedule of Changes for the purposes of a 6 week 
period of public consultation.   
 
(The Natural Resources and Waste Development Plan Document is being 
prepared within the context of the LDF Regulations and statutory 
requirements, and as the DPD is a Budgetary and Policy Framework 
document, the matters referred to within this minute are not eligible for Call In) 
 

253 Request from Scrutiny Board (Regeneration) regarding the Reduction of 
Rents to Kirkgate Market Traders for a Time Limited Period  
(a) Request from Scrutiny Board (Regeneration) to Executive Board to 

Reduce Kirkgate Market Rents for a Time Limited Period 
The Head of Scrutiny and Member Development submitted a report 
requesting that Executive Board gave considered a recommendation of 
Scrutiny Board (Regeneration) regarding a reduction in Kirkgate Market 
rents for all traders for a time limited period in view of the increasing 
vacancy factor in the market and in advance of the current review.    

 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the submitted report be noted. 

 
(b) A Response to a Request from Scrutiny Board (Regeneration) to 

Reduce Kirkgate Market Rents for a Time Limited Period 
The Director of City Development submitted a report providing the 
directorate response to a number of issues raised by Scrutiny Board 
(Regeneration) including a specific request regarding a proposed 
reduction in Kirkgate Market rents for all traders for a time limited 
period in view of the increasing vacancy factor in the market and in 
advance of the current review.    

 
The Board acknowledged the concerns of Scrutiny Board 
(Regeneration) and considered it’s recommendation regarding a 
proposed reduction in rents, which had been presented to the meeting. 
In response, the Board reiterated the Council’s desire for the long term 
future of the market to be secured. In addition, the level of investment 
into the market was highlighted and it was emphasised that the market 
would remain within Council ownership. Specifically regarding the 
recommendation of Scrutiny Board (Regeneration), it was 
acknowledged that some reconfiguration of the market was required in 
order to ensure that it prospered during challenging market conditions, 
however, it was noted that purely focussing upon traders’ rent levels 
was too narrow a scope, as the vibrancy of the market together with 
increased levels of footfall were key.  

 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the actions being taken to increase footfall to the market, to 

reduce vacancy rates and to secure the long term future of the 
market be noted. 

 

Page 64



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

(b) That the proposal from Scrutiny Board (Regeneration) to reduce 
the rents for tenants of Kirkgate Indoor Market be declined, but 
that officers be instructed to investigate implementing further 
measures to increase footfall, in consultation with traders, using 
£100,000 from the £1,750,000 budget for economic initiatives 
which was included within the 2012/13 strategic budget. 

 
(The matters referred to in Minute No. 253(a) were not eligible for Call In as 
they solely referred the recommendations of Scrutiny Board (Regeneration) to 
Executive Board for consideration. The matters referred to in Minute No. 
253(b) were eligible for Call In) 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS, HOUSING AND REGENERATION 
 

254 Reinvigorating the Right to Buy - Sale of Council Homes  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report 
informing of the changes which had been implemented on the 2nd April 2012 
by Government to amend the Right to Buy arrangements including extending 
the discount to a maximum of £75,000 and the right to retain receipts over 
and above those calculated in the Council’s Business Plan.  
 
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods provided details of further 
guidance which had been received from Government following the publication 
of the agenda, in respect of the initiative, which would now allow for the 
construction of social rented homes and the purchase of empty properties as 
well as the development of affordable homes at 80%.   
 
Concerns were raised regarding the proposals detailed within the submitted 
report, with emphasis being placed upon the principles around the Right to 
Buy initiative, the significant levels of investment which had been committed in 
recent years into the Decent Homes Standard and the fact that a maximum of 
30% of the additional capital receipts obtained from the sale of Council homes 
could be used to fund new properties. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That approval be given to enter into the Local Agreement to re-invest in 

the development of new affordable homes. The conditions for which 
include that support is limited to 30% of value.  

 
(b) That a further report on the options for the utilisation of any additional 

funding be submitted to a future meeting of Executive Board.  
 

(c) That the correspondence with tenants, as detailed at Appendix 3 to the 
submitted report, be noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
 

255 Basic Need 2013: Final Decision on Proposal to Expand Morley 
Newlands Primary School  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report regarding the proposal 
to expand Morley Newlands Primary School from 420 to 630 pupils, with an 
admission number increasing from 60 to 90, with effect from September 2013. 
 
Members received reassurance that the cost of the development for this 
school would not have a negative impact upon future school developments 
elsewhere. Responding to an enquiry, the Board received details regarding 
the proposed timescales for the new school building’s opening. 
 
The Board paid tribute to all of those staff who worked at Morley Newlands 
Primary School and the young people who attended the school, given the 
challenging nature of the existing facilities. 
 
RESOLVED – That approval be given to the expansion of Morley Newlands 
Primary School from 420 to 630 pupils, with an increase in the admission 
number from 60 to 90, with effect from 1st September 2013. 
 
LEISURE 
 

256 Friends of Bramley Baths and a Community Asset Transfer  
The Director of City Development submitted a report advising of the progress 
which had been made in respect of a potential Community Asset Transfer to 
the Friends of Bramley Baths organisation and recommending such a 
Transfer which shifted from the Council some, but not all, of the liabilities and 
risks around the 1904 building and its operation. 
 
Responding to an enquiry, the Board received clarification in respect of the 
proposed provision of financial contingency support for the Friends of Bramley 
Baths organisation in year one of the proposed operation. Also, Members 
received an update on the ongoing discussions which were currently taking 
place regarding a possible Community Asset Transfer involving Garforth 
Leisure Centre. 
 
The Board supported a proposal regarding the need for local Ward Member 
representation on the Board of the facility’s management organisation.   
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City 

Development to approve a 25 year lease at a peppercorn rent,  to the 
Friends of Bramley Baths, and that approval be given for the Council to 
consider any reasonable claim from the Friends organisation for future 
liabilities relating to a 1904 Grade II listed building and swimming pool. 

 
(b) That agreement be given to consider financial contingency support in 

Year 1 of the operation to overcome any immediate pressure caused 
by the asset transfer to the Friends of Bramley Baths. 

Page 66



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

 
257 Future of Cow Close, Drighlington, Rawdon and Shadwell Libraries  

The Director of City Development submitted a report outlining proposals 
regarding the transfer of Rawdon Library service and the building to the local 
community group; the transfer of Shadwell Library service to the Shadwell 
Independent Library Committee and the building to Shadwell Parish Council; 
the transfer of Drighlington Library service to the local friends group and the 
building to Environment and Neighbourhoods and to close Cow Close Library, 
as no community group had come forward to run the library. 
 
With regard to the proposals for Shadwell Library, Members noted the 
ongoing discussions which continued in respect of the terms regarding the 
proposed transfer, whilst a request was made that appropriate levels of 
engagement, together with the necessary levels of guidance were provided to 
all relevant parties on this matter.    
 
In relation to the proposals regarding Cow Close Library, the Board was made 
aware of concerns which had been raised by local Ward Members. In 
response, it was agreed that consideration of the proposals regarding Cow 
Close Library within the submitted report be deferred to the next meeting of 
the Board, in order to enable further engagement to take place with local 
Ward Members. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the request to transfer the freehold of Shadwell Library to 

Shadwell Parish Council be declined. 
   
(b) That the necessary authority be delegated to the Director of City 

Development to negotiate with Shadwell Parish Council or Shadwell 
Independent Library Committee, in order to agree a peppercorn lease 
on a full repairing and insuring basis. 

 
(c) That the community asset transfer of Rawdon Library building to the 

Friends of Rawdon Library be approved, by way of a 25 year 
peppercorn lease on a full repairing and insuring basis. 

 
(d) That the transfer of the library services at Rawdon and Shadwell to the 

Friends of Rawdon Community Library and Shadwell Independent 
Library Committee respectively, be approved. 

 
(e) That the transfer of Drighlington Library service to the Friends of 

Drighlington Library be approved, with the building being managed by 
Environment and Neighbourhoods directorate. 

 
(f) That consideration of the proposals regarding Cow Close Library be 

deferred to the next meeting of the Board, in order to enable further 
engagement to take place with local Ward Members. 

 
 
 

Page 67



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

258 Community Food Growing  
The Director of City Development submitted a report outlining proposals which 
were designed to encourage and support food growing in Leeds by 
establishing a community food growing network. 
 
Requests were made for local organisations such as the ALMOs and the 
Leeds and District Gardeners’ Federation to be provided with the opportunity 
to have greater involvement in the initiative.  Responding to enquiries, the 
Board received further details regarding officer involvement in the initiative 
and the associated funding arrangements.  
 
RESOLVED – That the planned development of a community food growing 
network in Leeds be supported. 
 
RESOURCES AND CORPORATE FUNCTIONS 
 

259 Provisional Outturn Financial Year Ended 31st March 2012  
The Director of Resources submitted a report providing details of the 
Council’s provisional financial outturn position for 2011/2012 and which 
commented on the key issues impacting upon the overall achievement of the 
budget for the current year. 
 
The Board highlighted and thanked officers for all of their efforts which had led 
to the Council achieving its current financial position. 
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 to the submitted report, designated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which was 
considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the provisional outturn position, as detailed within the submitted 

report, be noted. 
 
(b) That the creation and delegated release of earmarked reserves, as 

detailed within paragraphs 4.2 and 5.6 of the submitted report, be 
approved.  

 
260 Customer Access Strategy and Phase 1 Business Case  

The Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) and the 
Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a joint report 
providing an update on the ongoing work being undertaken to improve the 
customer experience in accessing the Council’s services, whilst also seeking 
endorsement of the new Customer Access Strategy for 2012-2015.  In 
addition, the report sought approval of an injection into the Capital 
Programme together with the necessary authority to spend £3,000,000, in 
order to deliver Phase 1 of the Customer Access Programme, which included 
the acquisition of a new integrated Waste Management system.  
 

Page 68



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

Members discussed the principles of the proposed strategy and the impact it’s 
introduction would have, both upon the Council’s accessibility levels, and also 
upon the effectiveness of the services provided. 
 
RESOLVED –  
(a) That the Customer Access Strategy 2012-2015, a summary of which 

was appended to the submitted report, be endorsed. 
 
(b) That approval be given to a process of public consultation on the 

Strategy through the Council’s Citizens’ Panel. 
 
(c) That approval be given to an injection into the Capital Programme of 

£3,000,000, with authority to spend also being approved, in order to 
deliver Phase 1 of the Customer Access Programme, as detailed within 
the submitted report. 

 
261 Regional Economic Intelligence Team - Update Report  

Further to Minute No. 70, 7th September 2011, the Assistant Chief Executive 
(Customer Access and Performance) submitted a report providing an update 
on the positive progress which had been made following the transfer of the 
Regional Economic Intelligence Team from Yorkshire Forward to Leeds City 
Council on the 1st November 2011. In addition, the report also provided 
details on the current funding position and revenue profile of the unit, the 
contribution of the team to work across the Council and the future 
opportunities which existed for the further development of the team’s 
contribution. 
 
The Board discussed the valuable work undertaken by the Regional 
Economic Intelligence Team and responding to a Member’s enquiry, it was 
noted that the team had achieved a £44,000 surplus at the of the financial 
year.  
 
RESOLVED – That the positive progress being made in establishing the new 
team be noted and that a further update report be submitted to Executive 
Board in January 2013. 
 

262 Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rules  
The Head of Governance Services submitted a report which sought approval 
of the proposed changes to Sections 1 and 2 of the Executive and Decision 
Making Procedure Rules, as detailed within Appendix A to the submitted 
report. 
 
RESOLVED – That Sections 1 and 2 of the Executive and Decision Making 
Procedure Rules, as appended to the submitted report, be approved.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 20th June, 2012 

 

 
DATE OF PUBLICATION:   18TH MAY 2012 
 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN 
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS:  25TH MAY 2012 (5.00 P.M.) 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00pm on 
28th May 2012)  
 
 
 

Page 70



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 
Relating to Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) 

 
 

1 June 2012 – 30 September 2012 
 
 

Appendix 4 

P
age 71



 
What is the Forward Plan? 
 
The Forward Plan is a list of the key decisions the Authority intends to take during the period 1 June 2012 – 30 September 

2012.  The Plan is updated monthly and is available to the public 14 days before the beginning of each month. 
 
What is a Key Decision? 
 
A Key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution is an executive decision which is likely to: 
 

• result in the Authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising 2 or more wards 
 
What does the Forward Plan tell me? 
 
The Plan gives information about: 
 
Ø  what key decisions are coming forward in the next four months 
Ø  when those key decisions are likely to be made 
Ø  who will make those decisions 
Ø  what consultation will be undertaken 
Ø  who you can make representations to 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 72



Who takes key decisions? 
 
Under the Authority’s Constitution, key decisions are taken by the Executive Board or Officers acting under delegated 
powers. 
 
Who can I contact? 
 
Each entry in the Plan indicates the names of all the relevant people to contact about that particular item.  In addition, 
the last page of the Forward Plan gives a complete list of all Executive Board members. 
 
How do I make contact? 
 
Wherever possible, full contact details are listed in the individual entries in the Forward Plan.  If you are unsure how to 
make contact, please ring Leeds City Council and staff there will be able to assist you: 
 

Leeds City Council  - Telephone: 0113 2474357 
 
How do I get copies of agenda papers? 
 
The agenda papers for Executive Board meetings are available five working days before the meeting from: 
 

Governance Services, Civic Hall, Portland Crescent, Leeds, LS1 1UR 
Telephone: 0113 2474350 

Fax: 0113 3951599 
Email: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

P
age 73



On occasions, the papers you request may contain exempt or confidential information. If this is the case, it will be 
explained why it will not be possible to make copies available. 
 
Where can I see a copy of the Forward Plan? 
 
The Plan can be found on the Leeds City Council Website www.leeds.gov.uk.  The Plan is regularly updated and for 
legal reasons is formally published on a monthly basis on the following dates: 
 
2012/13 
 

17th May 2012 16th November 2012 

15th June 2012 17th December 2012 

17th July 2012 17th January 2013 

17th August 2012 14th February 2013 

17th September 2012 15th March 2013 

17th October 2012 16th April 2013 

 

About this publication 

 
For enquiries about the Forward Plan of Key Decisions please: 
 
E-mail: cxd.councilandexec@leeds.gov.uk or telephone:  0113 247 4357 
 
Visit our website www.leeds.gov.uk for more information on council services, departments, plans and reports. 
 
This publication can also be made available in Braille or audio cassette. Please call: 0113 247 4357 
 

P
age 74



If you do not speak English and need help in understanding this document, please phone:  0113 247 4357 and state the 
name of your language.  
 
We will then make arrangements for an interpreter to contact you.    We can assist with any language and there is no 
charge for interpretation. 
 
(Bengali):- 

 
(Chinese):- 

 
(Hindi):- 

 
(Punjabi):- 

 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 75



(Urdu):- 

 

 

P
age 76



 
LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 

 
FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS 

For the period 1 June 2012 to 30 September 2012 
 

Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Request to implement a 
framework contract 
arrangement for provision 
of Supervised 
Consumption service in 
Pharmacies 
Request to implement a 
framework contract 
arrangement for provision 
of Supervised 
Consumption service in 
Pharmacies 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

1/6/12 None 
 
 

Delegated Decision Report 
 

 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

P
age 77



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Waste Solution for Leeds - 
Residual Waste Treatment 
PFI Project - Final 
Business Case and 
Contract Award 
Approve the submission of 
the Final Business Case 
(FBC) to DEFRA and 
approval of contract award 
including execution of 
contract documents and all 
land disposal 
authorisations for the 
project. 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
 
 

20/6/12 Elected Members, 
LCC Internal 
Stakeholders, DEFRA 
(Central Government 
Sponsoring 
Department) 
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Neil Evans, Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 
neil.evans@leeds.gov.
uk 
 

Monthly Financial Health 
Report 2012/13 
In noting the financial 
position for the month for 
the Authority a decision will 
be required as to the 
treatment of any variation 
identified. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Resources and 
Corporate 
Functions) 
 

20/6/12  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Doug Meeson, Chief 
Officer (Financial 
Management) 
doug.meeson@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

P
age 78



 
Key Decisions Decision Maker Expected 

Date of 
Decision 

Proposed  
Consultation 

Documents to be 
Considered by Decision 

Maker 

Lead Officer 
(To whom 

representations should 
be made and email 
address to send 

representations to) 

Monthly Financial Health 
Report 2012/13 
In noting the financial 
position for the month for 
the Authority a decision will 
be required as to the 
treatment of any variation 
identified 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Resources and 
Corporate 
Functions) 
 

18/7/12  
 
 

The report to be issued to 
the decision maker with the 
agenda for the meeting 
 

Doug Meeson, Chief 
Officer (Financial 
Management) 
doug.meeson@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

Monthly Financial Health 
report 2012/13 
In noting the financial 
position for the month for 
the Authority, a decision 
will be required as to the 
treatment of any variation 
identified. 

Executive Board 
(Portfolio: 
Resources and 
Corporate 
Functions) 
 

5/9/12  
 
 

The report which will be 
issued to the decision 
maker with the agenda for 
the meeting 
 

Doug Meeson, Chief 
Officer (Financial 
Management) 
doug.meeson@leeds.g
ov.uk 
 

 

P
age 79



 
NOTES 

 
Key decisions  are those executive decisions: 

• which result in the authority incurring expenditure or making savings over £250,000 per annum, or 

• are likely to have a significant effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards 
 

Executive Board Portfolios Executive Member 
 

Resources and Corporate Functions Councillor Keith Wakefield 

Development and the Economy Councillor Richard Lewis 

Environmental Services Councillor Mark Dobson 

Neighbourhoods Housing and 
Regeneration 

Councillor Peter Gruen 

Children’s Services Councillor Judith Blake 

Leisure Councillor Adam Ogilvie 

Adult Health and Social Care Councillor Lucinda Yeadon 

Leader of the Conservative Group Councillor Andrew Carter 

Leader of the Liberal Democrat 
Group 

Councillor Stewart Golton 

Leader of the Morley Borough Indep Councillor Robert Finnigan 

 
 
In cases where Key Decisions to be taken by the Executive Board are not included in the Plan, 5 days notice of the intention to take such 
decisions will be given by way of the agenda for the Executive Board meeting.  

P
age 80



 
 

LEEDS CITY COUNCIL 
 

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 

Decisions Decision Maker Expected Date 
of Decision 

Proposed 
Consultation 

Documents to be considered 
by Decision Maker 

Lead Officer 

Safer and Stronger 
Communities Plan 
(includes Safer and 
Stronger 
Communities City 
Priority Plan) 
 

Council July 2013 Via Executive 
Board, Scrutiny 
Board (Safer and 
Stronger 
Communities), 
Leeds Initiative 
Board, Safer and 
Stronger 
Communities 
Partnership Board 

Report to be issued to the 
decision maker with the agenda 
for the meeting 
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Neighbourhoods 

 
 
NOTES: 
The Council’s Constitution, in Article 4, defines those plans and strategies which make up the Budget and Policy Framework. Details of the 
consultation process are published in the Council’s Forward Plan as required under the Budget and Policy Framework.  
 
Full Council ( a meeting of all Members of Council) are responsible for the adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework. 

P
age 81



P
age 82

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Customer Access and Performance) / Director 
of Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: 2011/12 Q4 Performance Report and Refresh of the Council Business Plan 
2011-15 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for the 
council and city related to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board.   

Recommendations 

2. Members are recommended to 

• Note the Q4 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to 
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

• Provide challenge and feedback on the proposed changes to the Council 
Business Plan to ensure that this plan remains both challenging but also 
realistic and achievable.   

 

 

Report author:  Heather Pinches / 
Debra Scott 

Tel:  274638 / 75951 

Agenda Item 12

Page 83



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report presents to Scrutiny a summary of the quarter four (year end) 
performance data for 2011-12 which provides an update on progress in delivering 
the relevant priorities in the Council Business Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 
2011-15.  The Board will note that this is the end of the first year of delivery of 
these four year plans.  This report also brings proposed changes to the Council 
Business Plan for Scrutiny to consider prior to sign of by Executive Board in July 

2 Background information 

2.2 The City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 is the city-wide partnership plan which sets 
out the key outcomes and priorities to be delivered by the council and its partners.  
There are 21 priorities which are split across the 5 strategic partnerships who are 
responsible for ensuring the delivery of these agreed priorities.   

2.3 The Council Business Plan 2011 to 2015 sets out the priorities for the council - it 
has two elements - five cross council priorities aligned to the council’s values and 
a set of directorate priorities and targets.     

2.4 Members will note that the delivery of City Priority Plan priorities are shared with 
partners across the city while the Council Business Plan sets out the Council’s 
contribution to these shared priorities.  This report provides an overview of the 
performance relating to both plans enabling Executive Board to directly challenge 
the council’s performance as well as seeking to influence and challenge partners 
contributions through existing partnership arrangements. 

2.5 This report includes 3 appendices: 

• Appendix 1a – Performance Reports for the City Priority Plan Priorities 

• Appendix 1b – Directorate Priorities and Indicators relevant to the Board 

• Appendix 2 – Proposed changes to the Council Business Plan relevant to the 
Board 

3 Main issues 

Quarter 4 Performance Summary 

City Priority Plan 

3.1 There are 4 priorities in the City Priority Plan relevant to Safer and Stronger 
Communities Board and of these 2 are assessed as green and 2 amber.  The 
amber priorities are: 

•••• Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean 

•••• Increase a sense of belonging that build cohesive and harmonious 
communities 

 

Page 84



 

 

Council Business Plan 

3.2 Directorate Priorities and Indicators – there are 9 directorate priorities relevant 
to the Board and 1 is assessed as red, 3 are amber and 5 are green.  The red and 
amber priorities are: 

•••• Improve refuse service reliability (red) 

•••• Improve Recycling rates 

•••• Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean 

•••• Deliver an approach to locality working with improved community 
engagement and more local decision making 

3.3 The Board will note that this includes a number of new priorities and indicators to 
reflect the recent realignment of services and changes to the Terms of Reference 
of the Scrutiny Boards 

3.4 In terms of performance indicators 2 are green, 1 is amber and 1 is red with 1 with 
result outstanding which cannot be RAG rated.  The red indicator is: 

•••• Number of missed bins per 100,000 collected - this ended the year at 108 
(missed bins per 100,000 collected); compared to the target of 50.  Black 
bin performance was broadly in line, but green bin misses remain an 
issue.  A number of issues contributed at Q4 including increased 
Christmas waste, route re-organisations and failure of a routing database.  
Improvements are anticipated going forward as some of these issues are 
resolved and further service changes are implemented. 

Changes to the Council Business Plan 

3.5 It is important that our plans remain live and up to date and continue to reflect our 
most important priorities.  Therefore a light-touch refresh of the Council Business 
Plan has been undertaken at Q4 with the aim of: 

•••• adding any targets for 2012-13 which were missing when it was agreed 
last year;  

•••• revise any other targets where performance has been particularly good 
and a further stretch is needed; and  

•••• revise targets where there has been a significant policy or funding change 
or where changing circumstances means the target is no longer realistic. 

3.6 The changes to the Council Business Plan which are relevant to the Safer and 
Stronger Communities Board are shown in appendix 2.  This also reflects the 
recent re-alignment of services between City Development and Environment and 
Neighbourhoods and changes to Scrutiny terms of reference recently agreed at 
the AGM. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

Page 85



 

 

4.1.1 This is an information report and as such does not need to be consulted on with 
the public.  However all performance information is published on the council’s and 
Leeds Initiative websites and is available to the public.    

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 This is an information report and not a decision so due regard is not relevant.  
However, this report does include an update on equality issues as they relate to 
the various priorities in the report card in appendix 1.   

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 This report provides an update on progress in delivering the council and city 
priorities in line with the council’s performance management framework.   

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 There are no specific resource implications from this report; however, it includes a 
high level update of the Environment and Neighbourhoods financial position.  This 
is in terms of the directorate contribution to the cross council priority within the 
Business Plan of “spending money wisely”. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 All performance information is publicly available and is published on the council 
and Leeds Initiative websites.  This report is an information update providing 
Scrutiny with a summary of performance for the strategic priorities within its remit 
and as such in not subject to call in. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 The Performance Report Cards include an update of the key risks and challenges 
for each of the priorities.  This is supported by a comprehensive risk management 
process in the Council to monitor and manage key risks.  These processes also 
link closely with performance management. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 This report provides a summary of performance against the strategic priorities for 
the council and city related to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board.  

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Members are recommended to: 

• Note the Q4 performance information and the issues which have been 
highlighted and consider if they wish to undertake further scrutiny work to 
support improvement over the coming year in any of these areas. 

• Provide challenge and feedback on the proposed changes to the Council 
Business Plan to ensure that this plan remains both challenging but also 
realistic and achievable.   

Page 86



 

 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 City Priority Plan 2011 to 2015 

7.2 Council Business Plan 2011 to 2015 

 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

: (R
EP

OR
T C

AR
D) 

 
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
an

 to
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
O

ut
co

m
e:

 P
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 fe
el

 s
af

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

op
ul

at
io

n:
 R

es
id

en
ts

 o
f L

ee
ds

 

P
rio

rit
y:

 R
ed

uc
e 

cr
im

e 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
im

pa
ct

 a
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
(f

oc
us

 o
n 

bu
rg

la
ry

 r
ed

uc
tio

n)
 

 
 

 
P

ro
gr

es
s:

 

O
B

A
-P

A
T

  S
H

 
1

Wh
y is

 thi
s p

rior
ity?

T
he

 p
ub

lic
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 s
af

e 
an

d 
fe

el
 s

af
e 

on
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
, 

in
 t

he
 p

la
ce

s 
th

ey
 g

o 
an

d 
es

pe
ci

al
ly

 i
n 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ho

m
e.

 B
ur

gl
ar

y 
ha

s 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 c
on

se
qu

en
ce

s 
di

re
ct

ly
 

im
pa

ct
in

g 
on

 a
 p

er
so

n’
s 

se
ns

e 
of

 s
af

et
y,

 a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 d
am

ag
e 

an
d 

lo
ss

 i
nc

ur
re

d.
 

D
om

es
tic

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
le

ve
ls

 in
 L

ee
ds

 r
em

ai
n 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

 

Hea
dlin

e in
dic

ato
r

"T
u

rn
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
u

rv
e
" 

- 
B

u
rg

la
ry

 D
w

e
ll
in

g
 L

e
e
d

s

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0

0
0

Apr

M
ar

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2

0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0

8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0

1
1
/1

2

B
a
s
e
lin

e
 R

a
n
g
e

M
o
n
th

ly
 O

ff
e
n
c
e

s
S

e
a
s
o
n
a
lly

 A
d
ju

s
te

d
 T

re
n
d

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
m

ad
e 

st
ro

ng
 

pr
og

re
ss

 
th

is
 

ye
ar

 
in

 
w

or
ki

ng
 

to
w

ar
ds

 
its

 
de

si
re

d 
ou

tc
om

e 
an

d 
as

 a
 m

ea
su

re
 o

f 
su

cc
es

s;
 t

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

ta
rg

et
 f

or
 

20
11

/1
2 

(8
,2

00
) 

ha
s 

be
en

 e
xc

ee
de

d.
  

T
he

 c
on

tin
ue

d 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

an
d 

ta
ct

ic
al

 f
oc

us
 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 B

ur
gl

ar
y 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
pl

an
 h

as
 r

es
ul

te
d 

in
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

la
te

r 
ha

lf 
of

 t
he

 y
ea

r,
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
a 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 a

nd
 a

m
bi

tio
us

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

.

T
he

 2
01

1/
12

 r
es

ul
t 

su
rp

as
se

s 
ou

r 
pr

ev
io

us
 b

es
t 

ou
ttu

rn
 a

nd
 i

s 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t 
co

un
t 

fo
r 

w
el

l o
ve

r 
10

 y
ea

rs
; 

re
su

lts
 f

or
 Q

4 
sh

ow
 a

 3
3.

6%
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
(8

17
 

fe
w

er
 v

ic
tim

s)
 w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

la
st

 y
ea

r.
  

In
 2

01
1/

12
, 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

7,
66

2 
re

co
rd

ed
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

dw
el

lin
g 

of
fe

nc
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ci
ty

, 
do

w
n 

13
.6

%
 (

12
07

 f
ew

er
 v

ic
tim

s)
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

(t
he

 o
ffe

nc
e 

ra
te

 
fo

r 
Le

ed
s 

w
as

 2
2.

9‰
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

s)
.  

 
In

 2
01

1/
12

, 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
1,

21
7 

of
fe

nc
es

 a
ga

in
st

 A
LM

O
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s,
 d

ow
n 

by
 a

 
qu

ar
te

r 
on

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r.
 

F
or

 t
he

 1
2 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
to

 F
eb

, 
Le

ed
s 

ha
d 

m
ov

ed
 d

ow
n 

to
 t

he
 2

nd
 h

ig
he

st
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 i

n 
th

e 
iQ

ua
nt

a 
m

os
t 

si
m

ila
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 g
ro

up
.  

T
he

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

ga
p 

to
 

th
e 

F
am

ily
 

av
er

ag
e 

na
rr

ow
ed

 
fr

om
 

14
.0

1‰
 

ho
us

eh
ol

ds
 to

 1
2.

6‰
. 

W
a

rd

1
2

M
o

n
th

1
2

 M
o

n
th

 

%
 C

h
a
n

g
e

H
y
d

e
 P

a
rk

 &
 W

o
o

d
h

o
u

s
e

5
9

7
3

6
.0

%
B

ra
m

le
y
 &

 S
ta

n
n

in
g
le

y
4

2
0

8
.5

%
B

u
rm

a
n

to
ft

s
 &

 R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 H

ill
4

0
7

-2
9

.5
%

H
e

a
d

in
g
le

y
4

0
7

3
.3

%
A

rm
le

y
3

9
0

-3
4

.6
%

G
ip

to
n

 &
 H

a
re

h
ill

s
3

8
3

0
.3

%
K

ill
in

g
b

e
c
k
 &

 S
e

a
c
ro

ft
3

6
1

-1
6

.2
%

K
ir
k
s
ta

ll
3

5
8

-3
2

.7
%

C
h

a
p

e
l 
A

lle
rt

o
n

3
0

9
-2

9
.1

%

R
es

ul
ts

 a
bo

ve
 s

ho
w

 c
on

si
de

ra
bl

e 
su

cc
es

s 
ov

er
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

in
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
. 

 I
t 

is
 h

ow
ev

er
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
th

at
 t

he
re

 i
s 

m
or

e 
to

 d
o 

in
 H

yd
e 

P
ar

k 
&

 
W

oo
dh

ou
se

; 
co

nc
en

tr
at

in
g 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

at
te

nt
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
ta

ilo
re

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 w
ill

 r
em

ai
n 

a 
pr

io
rit

y.
  

E
ar

ly
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

si
gn

s 
si

nc
e 

M
ar

ch
 1

2 
in

 
th

is
 w

ar
d 

w
ill

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
.

Sto
ry b

ehi
nd 

the
 ba

sel
ine

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
ha

s 
be

en
 l

in
ke

d 
to

 p
ro

bl
em

at
ic

 a
nd

 n
ui

sa
nc

e 
gr

ou
ps

 o
f 

yo
ut

hs
 i

n 
so

m
e 

es
ta

te
 a

re
as

 th
at

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 v

ie
w

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

as
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

io
n 

of
 

A
S

B
. 

C
om

pl
ex

 
ne

ed
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 
su

ch
 

“u
p 

an
d 

co
m

in
g”

 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

w
ho

 
ca

n 
ra

pi
dl

y 
be

co
m

e 
pr

ol
ifi

c.
 

 
T

hi
s 

di
re

ct
ly

 
lin

ks
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 “

tr
ou

bl
ed

 f
am

ili
es

” 
ag

en
da

 t
ha

t 
fo

cu
se

s 
on

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
cr

im
e,

 
A

S
B

, u
ne

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 tr

ua
nc

y.
 

C
on

tin
ue

d 
is

su
es

 e
xi

st
 a

ro
un

d 
la

ck
 o

f 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

or
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t 
in

 c
rim

e 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 s

pe
ci

fic
 g

ro
up

s/
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 n
ew

 a
nd

 m
ig

ra
nt

 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
.

Page 89



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

: (R
EP

OR
T C

AR
D) 

 
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
an

 to
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
O

ut
co

m
e:

 P
eo

pl
e 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 fe
el

 s
af

e 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

op
ul

at
io

n:
 R

es
id

en
ts

 o
f L

ee
ds

 

P
rio

rit
y:

 R
ed

uc
e 

cr
im

e 
le

ve
ls

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
im

pa
ct

 a
cr

os
s 

Le
ed

s 
(f

oc
us

 o
n 

bu
rg

la
ry

 r
ed

uc
tio

n)
 

 
 

 
P

ro
gr

es
s:

 

O
B

A
-P

A
T

  S
H

 
2

Wh
at w

e d
id (

key
 ex

am
ple

s)
A

 r
ef

re
sh

ed
 b

ur
gl

ar
y 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

d 
fo

r 
20

12
, 

lin
ki

ng
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 a
nd

 t
ac

tic
al

 a
ct

iv
ity

. 
T

he
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
io

ns
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 a

ss
is

ts
 in

 f
or

w
ar

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 o

f 
m

a r
ke

tin
g 

an
d 

pr
es

s 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
.  

In
 M

ar
ch

, 
th

e 
sp

rin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

n,
 ‘i

t 
on

ly
 t

ak
es

 a
 m

in
ut

e 
~

 lo
ck

 u
p 

or
 lo

se
 o

ut
’, 

w
as

 l
au

nc
he

d.
 M

es
sa

ge
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
di

ss
em

in
at

ed
 u

si
ng

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
m

ed
ia

; 
e.

g.
 

R
ad

io
 

ad
ve

rt
is

in
g 

(A
ire

 
&

 
F

ev
er

),
 

so
ci

al
 

m
ed

ia
 

(t
w

itt
er

, 
fa

ce
bo

ok
, 

w
eb

si
te

s)
 b

us
 r

ou
te

s,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
en

tr
es

 a
nd

 r
ec

yc
lin

g 
ce

nt
re

s.
T

he
 

w
ee

kl
y 

ta
ct

ic
al

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

co
nt

in
ue

, 
w

he
re

 
O

rg
an

is
ed

 
C

rim
e 

G
ro

up
s 

(O
C

G
s)

 a
re

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

ns
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 d
is

ru
pt

 a
nd

 b
rin

gi
ng

 t
he

se
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
to

 ju
st

ic
e.

  O
ve

r 
12

 O
C

G
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 b
ei

ng
 in

ve
st

ig
at

ed
. 

In
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
an

d 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 t

he
 C

ro
w

n 
P

ro
se

cu
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
, 

ag
re

em
en

t 
ha

s 
be

en
 

so
ug

ht
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
R

ec
or

de
r 

of
 

Le
ed

s 
th

at
 

a 
com

mu
nity

 im
pac

t 
sta

tem
ent

 
ca

n 
in

fo
rm

 
Ju

dg
es

 
of

 
th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
ef

fe
ct

 
of

 
bu

rg
la

ry
 

w
he

n 
de

te
rm

in
in

g 
su

ita
bl

e 
se

nt
en

ci
ng

. 
 A

 p
ro

fo
rm

a 
ha

s 
be

en
 p

ro
du

ce
d,

 d
ire

ct
ed

 
fo

r 
us

e 
by

 t
he

 D
iv

is
io

na
l 

D
/Is

 f
or

 i
nc

lu
si

on
 o

n 
bu

rg
la

ry
 f

ile
s 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
th

e 
m

or
e 

pr
ol

ifi
c 

or
 p

ro
bl

em
at

ic
 n

om
in

al
s.

 I
t 

ha
s 

be
en

 f
av

ou
ra

bl
y 

re
ce

iv
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ju
dg

e 
an

d 
ar

ou
nd

 
10

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 
to

 
da

te
 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 

su
bm

itt
ed

. 
T

he
 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 t
he

 C
ou

rt
s 

is
 n

ow
 s

uc
h 

th
at

 a
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 b
rie

fin
g 

to
 t

he
 

R
ec

or
de

r 
on

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 is

su
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

.  
In

 t
he

 la
st

 y
ea

r,
 t

he
 L

ee
ds

 P
O

C
A

 T
ea

m
 (

P
ro

ce
ed

s 
of

 C
rim

e 
A

ct
) 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ac

tiv
el

y 
 t

ar
ge

tin
g 

‘a
ss

et
 r

ic
h’

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 c
ity

, 
w

ho
 a

re
 k

no
w

n 
or

 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

of
 l

iv
in

g 
ab

ov
e 

th
ei

r 
le

gi
tim

at
e 

m
ea

ns
 t

hr
ou

gh
 c

rim
in

al
 a

ct
iv

ity
.  

T
he

 t
ea

m
 h

av
e 

ut
ili

se
d 

ex
is

tin
g 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

to
 s

ei
ze

, 
re

st
ra

in
 a

nd
 c

on
fis

ca
te

 
th

es
e 

be
ne

fit
s,

 a
m

as
si

ng
 ju

st
 u

nd
er

 £
2m

ill
io

n.
  

O
pe

ra
tio

n 
A

nc
ho

r 
(p

ris
on

 r
el

ea
se

s)
 h

as
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 i
nt

o 
da

ily
 

bu
si

ne
ss

. 
 I

n 
Q

4,
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
14

6 
pr

is
on

 r
el

ea
se

s 
m

an
ag

ed
 o

f 
w

hi
ch

 7
5 

w
er

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

s 
at

 h
ig

h 
ris

k 
of

 r
eo

ffe
nd

in
g 

(7
5%

 +
 li

ke
lih

oo
d)

. 
A

 g
ra

nt
 fr

om
 th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 e

na
bl

ed
 Y

O
S

 s
ta

ff/
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

 to
 b

e 
tr

ai
ne

d 
on

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
e 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
er

 P
an

el
s.

  
F

or
 

ex
am

pl
e,

 
th

e 
R

eC
on

ne
ct

 
pr

oj
ec

t 
in

vo
lv

es
 

an
 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

r,
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 f

am
ili

es
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ne
ar

in
g 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 t

he
 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
, 

to
 c

o-
or

di
na

te
 a

 f
am

ily
 c

on
fe

re
nc

e 
en

ab
lin

g 
a 

su
pp

or
t 

pl
an

 to
 b

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
ch

an
ce

s 
of

 a
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l r
et

ur
n 

ho
m

e.

Wh
at W

ork
ed/

Les
son

s L
ear

nt 
A

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
pr

ed
ic

tiv
e 

an
al

ys
is

 t
oo

l h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 a

id
 t

he
 d

ep
lo

ym
en

t 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

es
, 

un
de

r 
th

e 
na

m
e 

of
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

O
pt

im
al

. 
 T

hi
s 

pi
lo

t 
pr

oj
ec

t 
w

as
 

la
un

ch
ed

 i
n 

N
W

L 
in

 e
ar

ly
 M

ar
ch

, 
an

d 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
“n

ei
gh

bo
ur

 r
is

k”
 a

nd
 

“o
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 

bu
rg

la
r”

 
m

od
el

s.
 

 
T

as
ki

ng
 

is
 

ro
bu

st
ly

 
m

an
ag

ed
 

to
 

en
su

re
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
re

 t
ig

ht
ly

 f
oc

us
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 l
oc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tim

e 
fr

am
e.

 I
t 

en
ha

nc
es

 r
es

po
ns

es
 t

o 
bu

rg
la

rie
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
fo

cu
se

d 
ta

rg
et

 h
ar

de
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

su
pe

r 
co

co
on

in
g.

  R
es

ul
ts

 to
 d

at
e 

ar
e 

po
si

tiv
e.

 
In

 N
W

L,
 t

he
 P

ol
ic

e 
ha

ve
 f

or
m

ed
 a

 R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

Ju
st

ic
e 

T
ea

m
 (

a 
se

rg
ea

nt
 a

nd
 

9 
of

fic
er

s)
 w

ith
 a

 r
em

it 
of

 e
st

ab
lis

hi
ng

 a
 r

es
to

ra
tiv

e,
 c

om
m

un
ity

 r
es

ol
ut

io
n 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ith

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
du

lt 
&

 y
ou

ng
 o

ffe
nd

er
s,

 a
s 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 
pr

os
ec

ut
io

n 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
to

 m
ak

e 
am

en
ds

 fo
r 

th
ei

r 
cr

im
es

.  
 

In
 

N
E

L,
 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 
pi

lo
t 

LC
C

 
se

cu
rit

y 
pa

tr
ol

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
de

pl
oy

ed
 

in
 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 (
7p

m
-1

2p
m

 &
 1

2p
m

-4
pm

) 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

la
st

 q
ua

rt
er

.  
T

he
se

 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
hi

gh
 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
pa

tr
ol

s 
ba

ck
ed

 
up

 
by

 
su

pp
or

t 
fr

om
 

th
e 

lo
ca

l 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 P
ol

ic
in

g 
T

ea
m

’s
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

C
C

T
V

 s
er

vi
ce

.  
F

un
de

d 
by

 
E

as
t 

N
or

th
 E

as
t 

H
om

es
, 

ea
rly

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

 s
ho

w
 a

 d
ec

re
as

e 
in

 b
ur

gl
ar

y 
in

 
st

re
et

s 
pa

tr
ol

le
d 

w
ith

 n
o 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

is
pl

ac
em

en
t.

New
 ac

tion
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 im
pa

ct
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

R
ed

uc
e 

an
d 

di
sr

up
t t

he
 s

to
le

n 
go

od
s 

m
ar

ke
ts

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 t

ai
lo

re
d 

re
sp

on
se

s 
to

 ‘i
t 

on
ly

 t
ak

es
 a

 m
in

ut
e’

 c
am

pa
ig

n 
in

 
lo

ca
lit

ie
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
Im

pr
ov

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

of
 s

ec
ur

ity
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l t
en

ur
e 

ty
pe

s

Info
rma

tion
/int

elli
gen

ce 
req

uire
me

nt 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

N
or

th
 W

es
t L

ee
ds

 p
ilo

t (
O

pe
ra

tio
n 

O
pt

im
al

) 

Iss
ues

/Ris
ks

T
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

rt
hc

om
in

g 
ye

ar
 w

ill
 b

e 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
m

om
en

tu
m

, 
fo

cu
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
itm

en
t b

y 
su

st
ai

ni
ng

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
ct

iv
ity

.

Page 90



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

:
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
an

ua
ry

  t
o 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

 
O

ut
co

m
e:

 T
he

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 o
f L

ee
ds

 fe
el

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
sa

fe
 

 
 

 
P

op
ul

at
io

n:
 R

es
id

en
ts

 o
f L

ee
ds

 

P
rio

rit
y:

A
nt

i-S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

P
ro

gr
es

s:

O
B

A
-P

A
T

1

Wh
y is

 thi
s a

 Pr
iori

ty?
R

es
id

en
ts

 e
xp

ec
t 

pu
bl

ic
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 t

ac
kl

e 
A

S
B

 in
 t

he
ir 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
in

 a
 r

es
po

ns
iv

e 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ne
r.

  
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

liv
es

 o
f 

vi
ct

im
s 

of
 A

S
B

 i
s 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l 

to
 

th
ei

r 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

l-b
ei

ng
. 

M
an

ag
in

g 
or

 m
od

ify
in

g 
th

e 
be

ha
vi

ou
rs

 o
f 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 c

re
at

e 
m

os
t h

ar
m

 in
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ill
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
an

d 
in

 tu
rn

 r
ed

uc
e 

A
S

B
 a

nd
 c

rim
e.

 

Hea
dlin

e In
dic

ato
r

T
he

 m
ea

su
re

 b
el

ow
 is

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 w

ith
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

 o
f 

A
S

B
, 

an
d 

ar
e 

is
 n

ot
 

re
fle

ct
iv

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n.

 
T

he
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 

fr
om

 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

W
es

t 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 P
ol

ic
e 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

su
rv

ey
 ~

 i
n 

th
e 

la
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s 

6,
43

0 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ur
ve

ye
d 

ac
ro

ss
 L

ee
ds

. 

"
T

u
rn

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

u
rv

e
" 

- 
A

S
B

 L
e
e
d

s
P

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 t

h
a
t 

le
v

e
ls

 o
f 

d
is

o
rd

e
r/

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
in

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a
l 

a
re

a
 h

a
v

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n

th
s

0
%

5
%

1
0
%

1
5
%

2
0
%

2
5
%

Apr

Mar

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3

% Agree

T
he

 2
00

8/
09

 b
as

el
in

e 
ra

ng
e 

w
as

 1
8.

03
%

 o
f 

re
sp

on
de

nt
s 

ag
re

ei
ng

 i
t 

ha
d 

go
t 

w
or

se
 in

 t
he

 la
st

 1
2 

m
on

th
s.

  
T

hi
s 

ha
s 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 1
2.

24
%

 in
 t

he
 la

te
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 
(J

an
 –

 M
ar

 2
01

2)
. 

 T
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

tr
en

d 
is

 d
ow

nw
ar

ds
, 

al
th

ou
gh

 t
he

re
 i

s 
so

m
e 

va
ria

tio
n 

in
 q

ua
rt

er
s 

an
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s.

Key
 Se

rvic
e In

dic
ato

r – 
LA

SB
T S

urv
ey 

C
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

da
ta

 is
 c

ol
la

te
d 

at
 c

as
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

cu
st

om
er

 (
vi

ct
im

) 
su

rv
ey

s,
 w

hi
ch

 s
ee

k 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

ls
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 v
ar

io
us

 a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g;

A
n

n
u

a
l 

F
ig

u
re

s
 

2
0
0

8
/9

 
2
0
0

9
/1

0
 

2
0
1

0
/1

1
 

2
0
1

1
/1

2
 

%
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

a
s
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
. 

6
1
.6

%
6
6
.1

%
6
0
.3

%
7
5
.0

%
 

%
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

7
2
.2

%
7
3
.7

%
7
0
.4

%
8
1
.3

%
 

Sto
ry b

ehi
nd 

the
 ba

sel
ine

 (LA
SB

T c
ase

s)
P

rio
r 

to
 i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 L
ee

ds
 A

nt
i-s

oc
ia

l 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

T
ea

m
 

(L
A

S
B

T
) 

A
S

B
 w

as
 r

es
po

nd
ed

 t
o 

ac
ro

ss
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
ag

en
ci

es
 (

A
LM

O
’s

, 
A

S
B

U
, 

P
ol

ic
e 

et
c)

 e
ac

h 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

o 
di

ffe
rin

g 
th

re
sh

ol
ds

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 m

ak
in

g 
di

re
ct

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 o

f c
ity

 w
id

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 d

at
a 

di
ffi

cu
lt.

W
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
fo

rm
er

 
A

S
B

U
 

su
rv

ey
 

re
sp

on
se

s,
 

th
er

e 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 t
hi

s 
jo

in
ed

 u
p 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

A
S

B
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y.

 L
A

S
B

T
 d

at
a 

co
lla

te
d 

du
rin

g 
20

11
/1

2 
w

ill
 f

or
m

 t
he

 b
as

el
in

e 
fr

om
 w

hi
ch

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 ta

rg
et

s 
ca

n 
be

 s
et

.

W
ha

t a
re

 th
e 

kn
ow

n 
fa

ct
or

s 
dr

iv
in

g 
th

e 
ba

se
lin

e ?
C

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 t

he
 c

as
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

is
 i

nf
lu

en
ce

d 
by

 m
an

y 
fa

ct
or

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

vi
ct

im
s 

ow
n 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 th
e 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 o

f t
he

 c
as

e.
 

LA
S

B
T

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 
ar

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

fo
cu

se
d.

 
F

or
 

ex
am

pl
e,

 
in

 
su

pp
or

tiv
el

y 
m

an
ag

in
g 

vi
ct

im
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
, 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

so
lu

tio
ns

, 
an

d 
id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
nd

 
re

sp
on

di
ng

 t
o 

in
di

vi
du

al
 n

ee
ds

. 
LA

S
B

T
 w

or
ks

 t
o 

re
so

lv
e 

ca
se

s 
at

 t
he

 e
ar

lie
st

 
op

po
rt

un
ity

. 
C

us
to

m
er

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 

su
gg

es
ts

 
th

at
 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

is
 

w
or

ki
ng

. 
C

om
m

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

e 
‘eff

icie
nt 

and
 pr

ofe
ssio

nal
, r

esp
ons

e r
ece

ived
’ fr

om
 

an
‘inv

alu
abl

e s
erv

ice’
. 

Page 91



Saf
er L

eed
s P

erfo
rma

nce
 Ac

cou
nta

bili
ty T

rac
ker

:
 

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 P
er

io
d:

 J
an

ua
ry

  t
o 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

 
O

ut
co

m
e:

 T
he

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 o
f L

ee
ds

 fe
el

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ar

e 
sa

fe
 

 
 

 
P

op
ul

at
io

n:
 R

es
id

en
ts

 o
f L

ee
ds

 

P
rio

rit
y:

A
nt

i-S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

P
ro

gr
es

s:

2
O

B
A

-P
A

T

LA
S

B
T

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
20

11
/1

2 
ha

s 
be

en
 d

ra
w

n 
fr

om
 o

n 
a 

to
ta

l 
of

 5
40

 s
ur

ve
ys

 f
ro

m
 

15
62

 
na

m
ed

 
vi

ct
im

s 
(a

n 
ov

er
al

l 
re

sp
on

se
 

ra
te

 
of

 
34.

6%
) 

gi
vi

ng
 

a 
95

%
 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 le

ve
l w

ith
 a

 3
.4

1%
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
te

rv
al

.

D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 C
lo

se
d 

C
as

e 
vi

ct
im

 d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 w
he

re
 e

th
ni

ci
ty

 i
s 

re
co

rd
ed

, 
87

.2
%

 o
f 

vi
ct

im
s 

ar
e 

W
hi

te
 B

rit
is

h 
et

hn
ic

ity
. 

63.
2%

 (
90

7)
 o

f 
vi

ct
im

s 
ar

e 
fe

m
al

e 
an

d 
36

.8
%

 (
52

7)
 m

al
e.

 T
he

 r
em

ai
nd

er
 a

re
 a

 m
ix

ed
 g

ro
up

 o
r 

ge
nd

er
 

un
kn

ow
n 

(n
ot

 r
ec

or
de

d)
 .

O
nl

y 
8 

vi
ct

im
s 

ar
e 

ag
ed

 u
nd

er
 1

8.
 A

na
ly

si
s 

of
 C

lo
se

d 
C

as
e 

pe
rp

et
ra

to
r 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 
89

.8
%

 
of

 
A

S
B

 
pe

rp
et

ra
to

rs
 

ar
e 

W
hi

te
 B

rit
is

h.
  5

3.2
%

 (
64

8)
 o

f 
pe

rp
et

ra
to

rs
 a

re
 f

em
al

e 
an

d 
46.

8%
 (

57
1)

 m
al

e.
 

T
he

 
re

m
ai

nd
er

 
ar

e 
a 

m
ix

ed
 

gr
ou

p 
or

 
ge

nd
er

 
un

kn
ow

n 
(n

ot
 

re
co

rd
ed

).
 

97
 

pe
rp

et
ra

to
rs

 w
er

e 
ag

ed
 u

nd
er

 1
8.

 

Wh
at w

e d
id

LA
S

B
T

 h
as

 t
ak

en
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 f
or

 a
ll 

re
po

rt
ed

 i
nc

id
en

ts
 d

ee
m

ed
 t

o 
be

 A
S

B
 

un
de

r 
ne

w
 

gu
id

an
ce

 
th

at
 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 
ha

rm
 

ce
nt

re
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

. 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d 
re

vi
se

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
un

de
rp

in
ne

d 
by

 c
us

to
m

er
 f

oc
us

ed
 

se
rv

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
as

es
 a

re
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

 a
nd

 r
es

ol
ve

d 
at

 
th

e 
ea

rli
es

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

.

S
tr

ea
m

lin
ed

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
 P

rio
r 

to
 A

pr
il 

20
01

 A
S

B
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

w
er

e 
lo

gg
ed

 
w

ith
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

A
S

B
U

 a
nd

 A
LM

O
’s

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
in

 r
ep

ea
t 

ca
lls

 a
nd

 d
up

lic
at

io
n.

 S
in

ce
 

A
pr

il 
20

11
 a

ll 
A

S
B

 r
el

at
ed

 c
al

ls
 h

av
e 

be
en

 l
og

ge
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 
sh

ow
s 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ep
or

ts
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
de

al
t 

w
ith

 b
y 

A
S

B
U

.

(*A
SB

U 
prio

r t
o 

04/
04/

11)
Q

1
10

/1
1

Q
2

10
/1

1
Q

3
10

/1
1

Q
4

10
/1

1
Q

1
11

/1
2

Q
2

11
/1

2
Q

3
11

/1
2

Q4 11/
12

E
nq

ui
rie

s 
lo

gg
ed

 
on

 
S

ie
be

l 
un

de
r 

LA
S

B
T

4
5

9
3

7
0

2
2

9
3

2
0

1
0

1
1

9
1

6
6

4
5

7
2

5

A
nn

ua
l T

ot
al

1
3

7
8

3
2

9
7

W
es

t 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 P
ol

ic
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 4
2,

00
0 

A
S

B
 c

al
ls

 d
ur

in
g 

20
10

/1
1.

 A
 

m
or

e 
ac

cu
ra

te
 A

S
B

 g
ra

di
ng

 s
ys

te
m

 w
as

 i
nt

ro
du

ce
d 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

11
, 

(e
.g

. 
re

m
ov

in
g 

re
po

rt
s 

of
 a

ba
nd

on
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s)
 a

nd
 d

at
a 

to
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

 
sh

ow
s 

th
e 

po
lic

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 2

6
,6

9
4

 A
S

B
 r

el
at

ed
 c

al
ls

 d
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2

D
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2 

LA
S

B
T

 o
pe

ne
d 

12
48

 n
ew

 c
as

es
, 

a 
21

.8
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

21
01

0/
11

 
fig

ur
es

.

(*A
SB

U 
prio

r 
to 

04/
04/

11)
Q

1
10

/1
1

Q
2

10
/1

1
Q

3
10

/1
1

Q
4

10
/1

1
Q

1
11

/1
2

Q
2

11
/1

2
Q

3
11

/1
2

Q4 11/
12

A
S

B
 c

as
es

 o
pe

ne
d 

by
 L

A
S

B
T

*
2

4
3

2
3

6
2

7
8

2
6

7
3

3
5

3
5

4
2

5
1

3
0

8

A
nn

ua
l T

ot
al

1
0

2
4

1
2

4
8

Wh
at W

ork
ed/

Les
son

s L
ear

nt 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ca
se

 d
ur

at
io

n 
da

ta
 (

du
ra

tio
ns

 h
av

in
g 

re
du

ce
d 

fr
om

 a
 

pr
e-

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
(A

S
B

U
) 

fig
ur

e 
of

 2
41

 d
ay

s 
to

 le
ss

 th
an

 1
50

 c
al

en
da

r 
da

ys
) 

 

New
 ac

tion
s 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 th
is

 s
uc

ce
ss

 th
re

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
ke

y 
ac

tio
ns

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 p

ur
su

ed
: 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
T

ea
m

 
st

af
f 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 
in

to
 

LA
S

B
T

 
re

co
gn

is
in

g 
th

e 
A

S
B

 im
pa

ct
 o

f d
om

es
tic

 n
oi

se
 n

ui
sa

nc
e.

 

W
es

t 
Y

or
ks

hi
re

 
P

ol
ic

e,
 

ar
e 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 

re
pe

at
 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
an

d 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
vi

ct
im

s,
 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

an
d 

en
su

re
 

LA
S

B
T

 
pr

oa
ct

iv
el

y 
re

sp
on

ds
 to

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 A

S
B

 is
su

es
.

W
or

k 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
LA

S
B

T
 r

es
po

nd
 to

 a
ny

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

 

Iss
ues

/Ris
ks

M
ov

in
g 

fo
rw

ar
d 

in
to

 2
01

2/
12

 o
ur

 k
ey

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
is

 t
o 

bu
ild

 o
n 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

ou
tc

om
es

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
du

rin
g 

20
11

/1
2.

Page 92



M
e

e
ti

n
g

: 
S

a
fe

r 
a

n
d

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 B

o
a

rd
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n

 L
e

e
d

s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
th

e
 c

it
y
 i
s
 c

le
a

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
lo

c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 c

le
a

n
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
C

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 a

re
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 c

it
e

d
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
y
 l
iv

e
 i
s
 a

tt
ra

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
lc

o
m

in
g

. 
C

le
a

n
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 c
a

n
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
a

 s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g

 a
n

d
 b

e
lo

n
g

in
g

; 
c
o

n
v
e

rs
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n

d
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 s

tr
e
w

n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 c

a
n

 
fo

s
te

r 
a

 s
e

n
s
e

 o
f 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

n
d
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c
ri

m
e

, 
th

is
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl

y
 t

h
e

 c
a

s
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 g

ra
ff

it
i,
 

fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
. 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
: 

A
m

b
e
r

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

1
0

 y
e

a
rs

 o
r 

s
o

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 s
te

a
d

ily
. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
e

y
 

d
ri

v
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
:-

 

* 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n
c
e

rn
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
ts

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 b

ri
n

g
s
 w

it
h

 i
t 

* 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
s
s
u

e
 f

ro
m

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 v

ia
 a

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
- 

N
I 
1

9
5

 (
p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 B
V

 1
9

9
)

* 
a

v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

fu
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 t
a

c
k
le

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
g

re
a

te
s
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 -

 N
R

F
, 

S
S

C
F

 a
n

d
 L

P
S

A
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 h

a
v
e

 a
ll 

b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 
L

e
e

d
s
.

T
h

e
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 t

h
e

 p
ri
m

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 a

n
d

 d
o

e
s
 t

h
is

 v
ia

 a
n

 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

o
n

 a
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
/s

c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 b

a
s
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
u

a
l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

in
g

, 
lit

te
r 

b
in

 e
m

p
ty

in
g

 a
n

d
 f

ly
-t

ip
 r

e
m

o
v
a

l.
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
is

s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 e

v
e

n
ts

, 
fe

te
s
 a

n
d

 g
a

la
s
 e

tc
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 v

ia
 E

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

r 
v
ia

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

a
 b

a
c
k
d

ro
p

 o
f 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 l
o

s
s
e

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 s
e
rv

ic
e

 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 i
n
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
te

x
t.
 

H
is

to
ri

c
a

lly
, 
 L

e
e

d
s
 h

a
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 w
e

ll 
a

g
a

in
s
t 
o
th

e
r 

‘c
o

re
 c

it
y
’ 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 (
N

I 
1

9
5

 d
a

ta
) 

w
it
h

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
p

e
n

d
 p

e
r 

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
. 

 A
t 

th
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 d

e
le

g
a

ti
o

n
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 
a

 s
u

rv
e

y
 w

a
s
 d

o
n

e
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
a
s
e

lin
e

 p
o

s
it
io

n
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
 t

h
a

t 
8

6
.7

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

ts
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 w

e
re

 d
e

e
m

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 L

it
te

r 
(S

e
p

t 
1

1
).

  
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

ic
a
lly

 b
u

t 
th

e
 

re
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 s

e
a

s
o

n
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 s

o
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
s
o

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

y
e

t 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 O
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
, 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 w

ill
 b

e
 b

u
ilt

 u
p
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 
y
e

a
r 

s
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 c
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
. 

L
e

e
d

s
 i
s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
iv

e
 i
n

 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
f 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
p

o
w

e
rs

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 l
it
te

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 f
ly

-t
ip

p
in

g
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 t
a

k
e

n
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g

 s
ta

n
c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 

s
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
F

ix
e

d
 P

e
n

a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

s
. 

T
ra

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 s

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 d
a

ta
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
t 

a
 c

it
y
 w

id
e

 l
e

v
e

l.
 M

o
re

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
c
e

d
 a

t 
a

 
lo

w
e

r 
le

v
e

l 
(b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 1
0

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 a

n
d

 t
a

c
k
le

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 a
 m

o
re

 b
e

s
p

o
k
e

 w
a

y
 t

h
a

n
 h

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
b

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
a
s
e

 a
t 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l.
 

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

P
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
, 
re

p
o

rt
e

d
 a

n
e

c
d

o
ta

lly
, 

h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 q
u

a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

2
0

1
1

/1
2
. 

V
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 b

y
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

, 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

A
 D

e
c
 2

0
1

1
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 
a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 7

0
%

 s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
 a

c
c
e

p
ta

n
c
e

 t
h

a
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 o
n

 c
le

a
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 ,

 w
it
h

 a
 

re
n

e
w

e
d

 a
tt

e
n

ti
o

n
 n

o
w

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 o

n
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

ic
h

, 
a

lo
n

g
s
id

e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 r
o

u
n

d
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

c
le

a
n

lin
e

s
s
.

T
h

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 c

o
m

p
la

c
e

n
c
y
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u

e
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
g

ro
u

p
s
 e

x
p

e
c
ti
n

g
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

 w
ill

in
g

n
e

s
s
 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

c
h

e
iv

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 4
C

O
M

3
C

IT
Y

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 P
L

A
N

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T

Page 93



W
h

a
t 

w
e

 d
id

 

 
W

e
 a

re
 c

o
m

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 p

e
ri

o
d

 o
f 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 
ro

u
n

d
 

o
f 

S
L

A
s
. 

T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

d
e

le
g

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 s

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
t 

A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
T

h
e

 c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 v

ia
 t

h
e

s
e

 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ro
u

te
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
s
e

d
 t

o
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

d
ra

ft
s
 o

f 
S

L
A

2
. 

 
T

h
e

 p
ri

n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

c
o

n
te

n
t 

o
f 

S
L

A
2

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 

b
y
 e

a
c
h

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
.

 
T

h
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 d

e
le

g
a

te
d

 t
o

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 

w
a

s
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
2

. 

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 z

e
ro

-t
o

le
ra

n
c
e

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n

 v
e

ry
 l
o

c
a

lis
e

d
 a

re
a

s
. 

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 e

x
te

n
d

e
d

 D
o

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
O

rd
e

rs
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 l
a

n
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 c
it
y
. 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

 
F

in
a

lis
e

 t
h
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 r
o

u
n
d

 o
f 

S
L

A
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

e
k
 s

ig
n

-o
ff

 b
y
 A

re
a

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
.

 
In

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
n
d

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

E
n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

Z
o

n
e

s
 i
n

 
E

N
E

.

 
P

ro
p

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 a
 n

e
w

 m
o

d
e

l 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 f
o

r 
a

n
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

H
e

a
d

in
g

le
y
. 

 
E

n
s
u

re
 l
o

c
a

l 
e

v
e

n
ts

 a
tt

ra
c
ti
n

g
 g

lo
b

a
l 
in

te
re

s
t 

/ 
c
o

v
e

ra
g

e
 a

re
 

w
e

ll 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
fo

rc
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 c

le
a

n
s
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
 

(t
o

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 e
m

e
rg

in
g

 C
it
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 C
h

a
rt

e
r)

. 

D
a

ta
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 n
o

w
 b

e
 

c
o

lla
te

d
 a

t 
a
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 l
e

v
e

l,
 t

h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 
‘in

te
lli

g
e

n
t’
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
. 

 

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

 
T

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

L
A

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 N
I 

1
9

5
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
. 

 
In

 t
h

e
 W

N
W

 a
re

a
 –

 A
n

 E
le

c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 i
s
 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 e

x
p

lo
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
lit

te
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 d

o
g

 f
o

u
lin

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 
A

rm
le

y
 T

o
w

n
 S

tr
e

e
t.

 

 
In

 t
h

e
 S

E
 a

re
a

 –
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
-l

e
d

 c
le

a
n

 u
p

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

 b
y
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
E

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e

r,
 t

h
e

 I
m

a
m

 o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
m

o
s
q

u
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
o

rs
h

ip
p

e
rs

 a
t 

F
ri

d
a

y
 p

ra
y
e

rs
. 

 
In

 t
h

e
 E

N
E

 a
re

a
 -

 I
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
te

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

lk
 v

e
h

ic
le

 t
e

a
m

s
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e
m

o
v
a

l 
o

f 
o

v
e

r 
2

0
0

0
 t

y
re

s
 f

ro
m

 
v
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

u
te

r 
a

re
a

s
. 

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
s
 f

a
c
e

 a
ll 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
 e

x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 e
ff

ic
e

n
c
y
/m

a
k
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
s

m
a

y
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

 
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 S
L

A
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 A
re

a
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 i
s
 v

it
a

l.
 

 
J
o

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
re

a
te

r 
fl
e

x
ib

ili
ty

 n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ff

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 a
n

y
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a

y
 o

c
c
u

r 
to

 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a

l 
w

o
rk

in
g

 p
a

tt
e

rn
s
/a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
s
ta

n
t 

b
a

la
n

c
in

g
 a

c
t 

o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 d

e
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
a

 v
e

ry
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e
 m

a
x
im

u
m

 c
le

a
n

s
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

 

 
M

o
re

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
e

n
g

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

lit
te

ri
n

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r.

 T
h

is
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

 m
ix

 o
f 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t.

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
a

lly
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 m
a

x
im

is
in

g
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

in
te

rn
a

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

Page 94



M
e

e
ti

n
g

: 
S

a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 S

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 B

o
a
rd

  
  

 
P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
:

A
ll 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
n
 L

e
e
d
s
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

:
P

e
o
p
le

 c
a
n
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
:

In
c
re

a
s
e
 a

 s
e
n
s
e
 o

f 
b
e
lo

n
g
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

b
u
ild

s
 c

o
h
e
s
iv

e
 a

n
d
 

h
a
rm

o
n
io

u
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

W
h

y
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
s

 t
h

is
 a

 p
ri

o
ri

ty

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t d
iv

er
se

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
cu

ltu
ra

l p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
U

K
, i

t a
ls

o 
ho

us
es

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t a
ffl

ue
nt

 p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 
as

 w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

m
os

t d
ep

riv
ed

 in
 th

e 
co

un
tr

y,
 a

nd
 th

es
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

. T
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 e
co

no
m

ic
 p

re
ss

ur
es

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

fa
ct

or
s 

pr
es

en
t b

ot
h 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 fo

r 
th

e 
ci

ty
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

st
re

ng
th

en
 o

ur
 

go
od

 c
om

m
un

ity
 r

el
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
 li

nk
s 

an
d 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 b
et

w
ee

n 
ou

r 
di

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s.
 

O
v
e
ra

ll
 P

ro
g

re
s
s
:

A
M

B
E

R

S
to

ry
 b

e
h

in
d

 t
h

e
 b

a
s

e
li

n
e

  
 

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
on

e 
of

 th
e 

m
os

t d
iv

er
se

 a
nd

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
cu

ltu
ra

l p
op

ul
at

io
ns

 in
 th

e 
U

K
.

T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f o

ur
 b

la
ck

 a
nd

 m
in

or
ity

 e
th

ni
c 

an
d 

ne
w

ly
 a

rr
iv

ed
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
  

ho
w

ev
er

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

d 
in

 th
e 

in
ne

r 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 le

ss
 a

ffl
ue

nt
 a

re
as

. T
hi

s 
ha

s 
cr

ea
te

d 
 

so
m

e 
te

ns
io

n 
in

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 w
he

re
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f n

ew
 a

rr
iv

al
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

in
g

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 fe

lt 
m

or
e 

ke
en

ly
. W

hi
ls

t t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pi
ct

ur
e 

is
 th

at
 L

ee
ds

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 r

es
ili

en
t a

nd
 to

le
ra

nt
, t

he
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 o

f i
nt

er
cu

ltu
ra

l  
te

ns
io

ns
 in

 s
om

e 
of

 o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 m
us

t n
ot

 b
e 

un
de

re
st

im
at

ed
. T

he
 p

ic
tu

re
na

tio
na

lly
 is

 th
at

 te
ns

io
ns

 b
et

w
ee

n 
di

ffe
re

nt
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f i
de

nt
ity

 a
re

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
, 

 a
nd

 L
ee

ds
 is

 c
on

sc
io

us
 o

f s
ta

yi
ng

 a
he

ad
 o

f t
ha

t t
re

nd
. 

E
ve

ry
 c

om
m

un
ity

 i
n 

Le
ed

s 
ha

s 
its

 s
tr

en
gt

hs
. 

H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 i
n 

Le
ed

s 
w

he
re

 m
ul

tip
le

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
oc

cu
r 

in
 t

he
 s

am
e 

lo
ca

tio
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
po

ve
rt

y,
 

un
em

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
tr

ua
nc

y 
an

d 
su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
is

us
e.

 W
he

re
 t

he
se

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
ot

he
rs

 a
ll 

ex
is

t 
in

 o
nc

e 
pl

ac
e 

it 
co

m
po

un
ds

 t
he

 e
ffe

ct
s 

of
 c

rim
e 

an
d 

an
ti-

so
ci

al
 b

eh
av

io
ur

, 
re

du
ce

s 
re

sp
ec

t f
or

 th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t a

nd
 li

m
its

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l b
en

ef
its

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 a
ct

io
n.

  

In
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

he
lp

 t
he

se
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 w

ith
 m

ul
tip

le
 c

on
ce

rn
s,

 o
ur

 f
oc

us
 is

 o
n 

ea
rly

 id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n,
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 f

or
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 s
uc

h 
ris

ks
, 

th
re

at
s 

an
d 

ha
rm

s.
 T

he
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 f

oc
us

 f
or

 t
hi

s 
w

or
k,

 is
 a

bo
ut

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 w

ha
t 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 c
an

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
a 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
at

 c
om

m
un

ity
 le

ve
l: 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

re
 m

os
t s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l. 

N
ew

ly
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 o
r 

ch
an

gi
ng

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
re

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
to

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

th
re

at
s,

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

an
d 

re
gu

la
r 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 w
ith

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 
re

si
de

nc
y,

 in
hi

bi
ts

 t
he

 f
or

m
at

io
n 

of
 s

tr
on

g,
 s

up
po

rt
iv

e 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 –
 a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

o 
lo

ok
 a

t 
w

ha
t 

su
pp

or
t 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o 

bu
ild

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 in

 
th

es
e 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

ds
, a

nd
 w

ith
 c

er
ta

in
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f i
de

nt
ity

. 

O
ve

ra
ll 

pr
og

re
ss

 is
 a

s 
pl

an
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 3
 m

on
th

s,
 a

nd
 th

er
e 

is
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 th
at

 w
e 

kn
ow

 w
he

re
 a

ct
iv

ity
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 to

 s
tr

en
gt

he
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. P
ro

gr
es

s 
is

 
no

te
d 

as
 A

m
be

r 
ho

w
ev

er
, t

o 
re

fle
ct

 th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 th
e 

rig
ht

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
w

he
re

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

pr
og

re
ss

.

W
h

a
t 

d
o

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 t
h

in
k

  
  

 

T
he

 g
ra

ph
 s

ho
w

s 
th

at
 in

 2
00

7/
08

 th
e 

ba
se

lin
e 

po
si

tio
n 

w
as

 5
9.

34
%

 (
ta

ke
n 

fr
om

 W
es

t Y
or

ks
hi

re
 P

ol
ic

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
su

rv
ey

 d
at

a)
.  

T
hi

s 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

to
 

69
.6

1%
 in

 Q
tr

 4
, a

lth
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

is
 s

om
e 

va
ria

tio
n 

in
 q

ua
rt

er
s 

an
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

lo
ca

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

m
an

y 
di

ffe
re

nt
 fa

ct
or

s 
in

flu
en

ci
ng

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

. 

"
T

u
r
n

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

u
r
v
e
"

D
o

 y
o

u
 a

g
r
e

e
 t

h
a
t 

y
o

u
r
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
r
e

a
 i
s
 a

 p
la

c
e

 w
h

e
r
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

r
o

m
 

d
if

fe
r
e

n
t 

b
a
c
k
g

r
o

u
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 l
iv

e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r
 h

a
r
m

o
n

io
u

s
ly

?

5
0
%

5
5
%

6
0
%

6
5
%

7
0
%

7
5
%

8
0
%

Apr

Mar

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1
2
0
1
1
/1

2
2
0
1
2
/1

3

% Responses

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 Q

U
A

R
T

E
R

 4
 

C
O

M
4

C
IT

Y
 P

R
IO

R
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

Page 95



W
h

a
t 

w
e
 d

id
 

T
he

Saf
er 

and
 St

ron
ger

 C
om

mu
niti

es 
Bo

ard
 

lo
ok

ed
 

at
 

a 
fo

cu
s 

on
 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

pr
ac

tic
e.

The
 St

ron
ger

 Co
mm

uni
ties

 pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ha
s 

in
iti

at
ed

 a
n 

ov
er

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 h

av
in

g 
an

 im
pa

ct
 a

t 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 le
ve

l –
 a

nd
 a

re
 

ex
pl

or
in

g 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
st

ro
ng

er
 c

om
m

un
iti

es

Mig
rati

on 
Par

tne
rsh

ip: 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

op
tio

ns
 o

f 
ho

w
 b

es
t 

to
 c

op
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 c
ut

s 
to

 t
he

 s
ec

to
r,

 a
nd

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

lik
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
as

yl
um

 s
ys

te
m

, a
nd

 
as

yl
um

 h
ou

si
ng

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 s
up

po
rt

 w
or

k 
to

 p
re

ve
nt

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

in
 n

ew
ly

 
ar

riv
ed

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

. 

T
he

Gy
psy

 Ro
ma

 Tr
ave

ller
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 h

as
 p

ro
gr

es
se

d 
w

or
k 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 

a 
R

om
a 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
an

d 
a 

G
yp

sy
 T

ra
ve

lle
r 

N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t 
to

 
br

in
g 

to
ge

th
er

 
w

or
k 

in
 

he
al

th
 

an
d 

so
ci

al
 

ca
re

 
an

d 
to

 
di

re
ct

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

. 
T

he
y 

ar
e 

al
so

 e
xp

lo
rin

g 
ho

w
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ad

ul
t 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 
fo

r 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 y
ou

ng
 w

om
en

 fr
om

 th
es

e 
gr

ou
ps

. 

W
h

a
t 

w
o

rk
e

d
 l

o
c

a
ll

y
 /

C
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
y
 o

f 
im

p
a

c
t 

T
he

 M
ig

ra
nt

 C
om

m
un

ity
 O

rg
an

is
er

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
ho

st
ed

 a
n 

aw
ay

 d
ay

 f
or

 a
ll 

th
e 

m
ig

ra
nt

s 
tr

ai
ne

d 
so

 f
ar

. 
T

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
 t

o 
ex

pl
or

e 
fo

r 
w

or
ki

ng
 m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

to
ge

th
er

 a
nd

 w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 a

gr
ee

d 
to

 f
or

m
 t

he
 M

ig
ra

nt
 C

om
m

un
ity

 N
et

w
or

k 
to

 i
m

pr
ov

e 
re

la
tio

ns
 

ac
ro

ss
 n

ew
ly

 a
rr

iv
ed

 g
ro

up
s.

 F
un

di
ng

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

cu
re

d 
fo

r 
a 

fo
rt

h 
co

ho
rt

 o
f 

vo
lu

nt
ee

r 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

N
e
w

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

Saf
egu

ard
ing

 ou
r C

om
mu

niti
es:

 t
he

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

t 
sh

ow
s 

a 
sl

ow
, 

bu
t 

st
ea

dy
 r

is
e 

in
 t

he
 s

pr
ea

d 
of

 a
re

as
 o

f 
co

nc
er

n 
ar

ou
nd

 t
en

si
on

s;
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 le

ve
ls

 o
f r

is
k 

ha
ve

 g
en

er
al

ly
 r

em
ai

ne
d 

“lo
w

”.
 In

 te
rm

s 
of

 n
um

be
rs

 
of

 r
ec

or
de

d 
ha

te
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

– 
al

th
ou

gh
 t

he
se

 h
av

e 
ris

en
 in

 q
ua

rt
er

 4
 –

 t
he

se
 

ha
ve

 
m

ai
nl

y 
be

en
 

in
 

th
e 

“M
od

er
at

e”
 

 
(R

ep
ea

t 
ha

ra
ss

m
en

t, 
th

re
at

s,
 

in
tim

id
at

io
n)

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

  
“C

on
ce

rn
” 

(I
so

la
te

d 
na

m
e 

ca
lli

ng
, 

ab
us

iv
e 

la
ng

ua
ge

) 
ca

te
go

rie
s,

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 i

nd
ic

at
iv

e 
of

 i
nc

re
as

ed
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

le
ve

ls
. 

A
nd

 t
he

 a
ct

ua
l 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

in
 t

he
 “

H
ig

h/
 S

ev
er

e”
 (

ph
ys

ic
al

 v
io

le
nc

e,
 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 

pr
op

er
ty

) 
ha

ve
 

de
cr

ea
se

d. 
W

or
k 

ha
s 

al
so

 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
m

ap
pi

ng
 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 
su

pp
or

t 
in

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

an
d 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 i

nt
er

-c
om

m
un

ity
 t

en
si

on
s.

 T
he

 M
ig

ra
tio

n 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ill
 a

ss
is

t 
th

is
 w

or
k.

Dat
a D

eve
lop

me
nt 

T
he

 S
tr

on
ge

r 
C

om
m

un
iti

es
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 h

as
 a

ss
ig

ne
d 

a 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

4 
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e 
pr

ox
y 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 to

 h
el

p 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l h

ea
dl

in
e 

in
di

ca
to

r 
– 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 m

or
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 m
ea

su
re

, a
nd

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

in
di

ca
tiv

e 
of

 
sh

or
t t

er
m

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 T

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
m

et
 a

nd
 o

ut
lin

ed
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f a
re

as
 to

 
pr

og
re

ss
 d

at
a 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
a 

re
lia

bl
e 

m
ea

su
re

 fo
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 
st

re
ng

th
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
lif

e 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

. T
he

se
 

w
ill

 b
e 

w
or

ke
d 

up
 fu

rt
he

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
ai

m
 o

f b
ei

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
Q

1 
20

12
/1

3.

R
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
s

E
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
ar

e 
in

 a
 p

os
iti

on
 to

 e
ng

ag
e 

an
d 

de
liv

er
 w

he
re

 a
ct

io
n 

is
 n

ee
de

d 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 in
flu

en
ce

 b
eh

av
io

ur
 is

 a
 k

ey
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t e
co

no
m

ic
 c

lim
at

e.
 A

 n
at

io
na

l i
nc

re
as

e 
in

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 h
at

e 
cr

im
e 

an
d 

in
te

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 te
ns

io
n 

is
 n

ot
ed

 a
s 

a 
ris

k 
fo

r 
Le

ed
s,

 a
nd

 w
e 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

w
e 

le
ar

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 o
f o

th
er

 c
iti

es
 w

he
re

 c
iv

ic
 u

nr
es

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
m

or
e 

ev
id

en
t t

ha
n 

in
 L

ee
ds

.

Page 96



2011/12 Directorate Priorites Reporting Period :

Environment & Neighbourhoods 
Directorate Priorities

Progress Summary
Overall 
Progress

Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Deliver the Safer and Stronger Board City Priority 
Plan, with a focus on reducing burglary levels, 
increasing confidence in relation to Anti Social 
Behaviour and improving cleanliness

The Safer aspect of the Board's work is progressing well and there is significant progress in relation to priorities round 
ASB and Burglary,  The clean neighbourhood work is also progressing well.  In relation to the Stronger element, the 
focus has been on a range of issues potentially impacting on communites such as Welfare Reform, Asylum and 
Government changes in cohesion policy.

Green

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Create the environment for effective partnership 
working

The Safer/Stronger CPP Board is well established and has TOR, meeting schedules and action plans. It is built on 
some well established relationships and close partnership working which are paying dividends e.g. the significant 
improvement in burglary outcomes are as a result of the delivery of a partnership-led burglary reduction programme.  

Green

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Improve Recycling rates

Recycling rates have increased by approx 2.5 % over previous year with a corresponding annual reduction (circa 
21,600 tonnes) less waste being sent to landfill. The target has not been reached primarily due to a lower the expected 
tonnage of waste processed through the AWM Gildersome facility, and an expected increase in recycling at HWSS not 
yet being observed over the winter opening hours.

Amber

Increase percentage waste recycled 41.19%

PROV
39.69%
(YTD 

40.46%)

YTD 39.75%
to end Nov 

37.32%
(Provisional)

Improve refuse service reliability

Service reliability during the last quarter of the year deteriorated slightly. This is due to a number of reasons: January is 
seasonally a challenging period because of extra waste caused by Christmas.  There was a re-organisation of hard to 
access and farm routes at the end of January and bad weather at the start of February which had a short term impact 
on missed collections. The primary data base for routing information failed during December and the transfer of 
information to an alternative platform resulted in data corruption requiring a full data cleansing exercise. As the data 
cleaning exercise progresses, improvements are expected to be seen through a reduced number of complaints.

Red

Reduce number of missed bins per 100,000 collected NA 98 95 108

Ensure that local neighbourhoods are clean

Street cleanliness is measured annually via a total of 3,000 surveys undertaken across three periods in the year. The 
full year, city-wide result for litter for 2010/11 was 86.7% of sites found to be satisfactory. The latest (second) survey 
conducted in Dec 2011 reported this to have increased to 88.4%. It should be noted that the latter reflects one period in 
the year as opposed to the full year result for 2010/11 and therefore the two are not entirely comparable. Perception 
data is not yet available due to issues with the use of the citizens panel.

Amber

Reduce percentage of streets with unacceptable levels of litter.  
NB Year end site survey data to be used to monitor this priority

NA NA NA

Year end data 
not yet 
available

Reduction in Burglary levels

In the last 12 months Leeds has made strong progress in working towards its desired outcome.  As a measure of 
success the partnership reduction target for 2011/12 (8,200) has been exceeded. The 2011/12 result exceeds our 
previous best outturn of 05/06 and January, February and March saw the lowest recorded burglary count in over ten 
years and the best performing months for over ten years.

Green

Reduce number of burglaries
(Target 8,200)

2112
2143
(4255)

1790
(6045)

1,617 
(7662)

The single site charge at Lotherton Estate has been implemented and provides an improved offer in conjunction with 
Museums and Galleries. Visitor numbers to the Estate will be monitored during 2012/13 to establish impacts on 
visitation and income. Golf have implemented their new pricing policy including the concessionary rates and season 
tickets. In March 2012 a survey was launched which will run until at least December 2012 and aims to gather the views 
of users. Parks and Countryside have agreed to restore its apprentice programme with a plan to recruit 21 apprentices 
in the areas of horticulture, landscaping, animal care, catering and retail and engineering. Apprentices will start in 
September 2012 and will study a 2 year programme to gain an NVQ2 qualification.

The percentage of sites reaching the Green Flag standard has increased since 2007 from 16.1% to 26.57% and the 
2011/12 result has slightly exceeded the target.  A report has been considered by Parks and Countryside Management 
Team noting the outcome of the 2011/12 assessment and the areas of underperformance, typically these are around 
provision of signage and site interpretation which are to be included in the investment plan.  Work is continuing to 
improve facilities at Middleton, Bramley Park, Burley Park and Queens Park in Pudsey.

Work effectively at a local level (Environment and 
Neighbourhoods)

Our locality-based approach in relation to Street Cleansing and Environmental Enforcement is progressing well - see 
clean neighbourhoods priority below.  The Directorate continues to bring a locality focus to its work and E+N SLT has 
recently taken an in-depth look at the Hyde Park/Woodhouse area to identify issues and joint strategies.  

Green

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

26.57%
Improve the quality  of Leeds’ parks
(Service realigned from City Development)

Increase percentage of parks and countryside sites assessed 
internally that meet the Green Flag criteria
(Annual Target - 26.2%)

Quarter 4 2011/12

Green

Annually Reported at Q4

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\4\AI00037415\$evg2cyzh.xls

P
age 97



OtherDirectorate Priorities Progress Summary
Overall 
Progress

Supporting Measures Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Deliver an approach to locality working with improved 
community engagement and more local decision 
making 
(Customer Access and Performance)

Following the review period for locality working, we have made steady progress in identifying key structures and 
linkages, and have begun work on addresssing these. Concurrently this has clarified a number of issues relating to how 
performance needs to be managed and reported both within the loclaity working teams and to wider audiences 
including the Council and the Leeds Initiative partnership.  Area Leaders and their teams have begun identifying key 
work areas and their contributions to city priorities. Key areas for developing improved local decision making including 
potential new delegations have been identified for progress in the next years work programme. Area Leadership Teams 
have continued to meet and begun setting improvment targets within a linked performance framework. Progress for the 
Teams is still at an early stage with some "patchy" outcomes, indicating a steep learning curve which is still to be 
achieved, but commitment and dedication to making the journey remains high.

Amber

Increase percentage of people who feel they are involved in 
their local community

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

23.6
(18,877)

Q2 23.2‰
(18,574)

YTD 46.9‰ 
(37,451)

20.9‰
(16,715)
YTD
67.8‰
(54,166)

20.4‰
(16,279)
YTD
88.2%
(70,445)

Reduce the overall crime rate (per 1000 population)
(Target 95.1‰ or <=74,038)

Other Relevent Indicator

Indicator being developed - To be collected through 
Citizens Panel

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\5\1\4\AI00037415\$evg2cyzh.xls

P
age 98



1 

Appendix 2 Council Business Plan Changes 
Directorate Priorities and Performance Measures  
 
• Create the environment for effective partnership working 

• Deliver the Safer and Stronger Board City Priority Plan, with a focus on reducing burglary levels, increasing confidence in 
relation to Anti Social Behaviour and improving cleanliness 

• Improve recycling rates 

• Improve refuse service reliability 

• EXTENDED Ensure that local neighbourhoods and central commercial areas are clean 

• Work effectively at a local level (NB Environment and Neighbourhood priority) – DELETE - the intention going forward is to 
integrate a locality focus into all relevant service areas in Environment and Neighbourhoods.  This topic is also covered by an 
city wide priority on locality working below so it is a duplication.  

• Improve the quality of Leeds’ parks  

• Deliver an approach to locality working with improved community engagement and more local decision making 
 
 
 

Performance Measure Baseline 
(2010-11 year end result unless 

otherwise stated ) 

Result Target 

2011/12 2012/13 

Increase percentage waste recycled 34.67% 
37.32% 

(Provisional) 
45% 
44% 

Reduce number of missed bins per 100,000 collected 
Working to establish a reliable 

baseline position – targets to be 
reviewed once this is available 

108 < 50 

Reduce number of burglaries 8869 7,662 
7600 
7480 

Reduce percentage of streets with unacceptable 
levels of litter 

New baselines being established at 
Area Cttee level which will be used 
to determine city-wide baseline and 

targets 

tbc 
5% 

improvement by 
Dec 2013 

P
age 99



2 

Performance Measure Baseline 
(2010-11 year end result unless 

otherwise stated ) 

Result Target 

2011/12 2012/13 

Percentage of parks and countryside sites assessed 
internally that meet the Green Flag criteria 

23% 26.57% 29.4% 

Increase percentage of people who feel they are 
involved in their local community 

New Indicator – baseline to be established in 2011-12 2012-13 through 
Citizen panel.  Targets to be set for 2013/14 

 
 

P
age 100



Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Board 

Date: 18th June 2012 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1 Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 

forthcoming municipal year. 
 

2 Main issues 
 
2.1 Further to the discussions already held with the Director and Executive Board 

Members during today’s meeting, Members are now requested to translate the 
decisions made around the chosen topics for Scrutiny into a work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year. 

 
2.2 A draft work schedule is attached.  Already included within the draft work schedule 

are the traditional items of Scrutiny work.  These involve performance monitoring, 
recommendation tracking and Budget and Policy Framework Plans.   

 

3. Recommendations 
 

3.1 Members are asked to prioritise the topics identified for Scrutiny and incorporate 
these into its work schedule for the forthcoming municipal year. 

 

4. Background papers1 

None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available for inspection on request for a period of four 
years following the date of the relevant meeting.  Accordingly this list does not include documents containing 
exempt or confidential information, or any published works.  Requests to inspect any background documents 
should be submitted to the report author. 

 Report author:  Angela Brogden 

Tel:  2474553 

Agenda Item 13

Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 201213 

Area of review June July August 
 

To be determined 

 
   

To be determined 

 
   

To be determined 

 
   

To be determined 

 
   

Briefings 
 
 

Equality Improvement Priorities 
SB 18/06/12 @ 10 am 

  

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 
 

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny in Leeds 
SB 18/06/12 @ 10 am 
 
 

  

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
  

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

 Fuel Poverty Inquiry – Formal Response 
SB 30/07/12 @ 10 am 
 
Phase 2 Dog Control Orders 
SB 30/07/12 @ 10 am 

 

Performance Monitoring 
 

Quarter 4 performance report 
SB 18/06/12 @ 10 am 
 

  

 
 
 
 

P
age 103



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review September October November 
 

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

To be determined 

 
 

   

Briefings 
 
 

   

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 
 

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking 
 
 

 
 

  

Performance Monitoring 
 
 

Quarter 1 performance report 
SB 10/09/12 @ 10 am 
 

  

 

P
age 104



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review December January February 

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

  

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

  

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

  

To be determined 

 
 

   

Briefings 
 
 

   

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 
 

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring Quarter 2 performance report 
SB 10/12/12 @ 10 am 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 105



Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Safer and Stronger Communities) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2012/13 

Area of review March April May 

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

  

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

  

To be determined 

 
 
 
 

  

To be determined 

 
 

   

Briefings 
 
 

   

Crime and Disorder 
Committee work. 
 

   

Budget & Policy Framework 
Plans 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring 
 
 

Quarter 3 performance report 
SB 11/03/13 @ 10 am 
 

  

 

P
age 106


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 3 April 2012
	7 Changes to the Council's Constitution
	Appendix

	8 Co-opted Members
	9 Crime and Disorder Scrutiny
	Appendix

	10 Equality Improvement Priorities 2011-2015
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	11 Sources of work for the Scrutiny Board
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4

	12 2011/12 Quarter 4 Performance Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	13 Work Schedule
	Appendix


